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1. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF TRADITIONAL OWNERS

We acknowledge the traditional owners of the land on which we are meeting. We
pay our respects to their Elders and to Elders from other communities who may
be here today.

2. OPENING PRAYER

Almighty God, we humbly ask thee to bless and guide this council in its
deliberations so that we may truly preserve the welfare of the people whom we
serve. Amen

3. PRESENT

4. ABSENT

5. ACCEPTANCE OF APOLOGIES & GRANTING OF LEAVE OF ABSENCE
RECOMMENDATION:

That <<enter text>> be granted leave of absence for the period
<<enter text>>to <<enter text>> .

ORDER OF BUSINESS

6. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE

In accordance with sections 77A, 77B, 78 and 79 of the Local Government Act
1989 Councillors are required to disclose a ‘conflict of interest’ in a decision if
they would receive, or could reasonably be perceived as receiving, a direct or
indirect financial or non-financial benefit or detriment (other than as a voter,
resident or ratepayer) from the decision.

Disclosure must occur immediately before the matter is considered or
discussed.

PRESENTATION OF REPORTS
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OFFICERS’ REPORTS

7. CORPORATE SERVICES

7.1 ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

Meeting Type: Special Council Meeting

Date of Meeting: 25 October 2018

Author: Manager Finance

File Name: Council Publications - Annual Reports
File No: D18/64450

No Council officers or contractors who have provided advice in relation to this
report have declared a conflict of interest regarding the matter under
consideration.

Executive Summary

This report is presented to Council for adoption of the 2017/18 Annual Report.
The Annual Report has been prepared as required by Sections 131 to 134 of the
Local Government Act 1989 (the Act).

RECOMMENDATION:

That Council adopts the Annual Report 2017/18 as prepared and
forwarded to the Minister for Local Government.

Background

It is a statutory requirement that councils prepare and report on medium and
short term plans in order to discharge their duties of accountability and
transparency to their communities.

Councils are required to prepare an annual report in respect of each financial
year consisting of three parts:

o report of operations: information about the operations of the council

o performance statement: audited results achieved against the
prescribed performance indicators and measures

o financial statements: audited financial statements prepared in
accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards.

At its September meeting, Council adopted the Financial and Performance
Statements in principle prior to approval by the Victorian Auditor General. We
have now received the unqualified Audit Reports for the 2017/18 financial year
and have forwarded the Annual Report (refer attachment) to the Minister as
required by the Act.
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Implications

Policy Considerations

There are no specific Council policies or strategies that relate to this report.
Financial/Economic Implications

There are no financial or economic implications identified for the subject of this
report.

Legal/Statutory

The adoption of the Annual Report meets the requirements of section 134 of the
Act.

Social
There are no social impacts identified for the subject of this report.
Environmental/Sustainability Impacts

There are no environmental/ sustainability impacts identified for this subject of
this report.

2017 — 2021 Council Plan

This report supports the 2017-2021 Council Plan:
Goal

We are Sustainable
Our legislative, governance and compliance requirements will be met.

Risk Management

There are no risks identified for the subject of the report.

Consultation/Communication

Section 134 of the Act requires Council to consider the Annual Report at a
meeting of Council held as soon as practicable after the Council has sent the
annual report to the Minister. The meeting must be advertised at least 14 days
before the meeting is held and the advertisement must also advise where copies
of the annual report can be obtained. The meeting must be kept open to the
public while the annual report is discussed.

Options for Consideration

No alternate recommendations are possible for this report as the Annual Report
has already been sent to the Minister for Local Government
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Conclusion

In accordance with the requirements of the Act, the Wangaratta Rural City
Council prepared an Annual Report for the financial year 2017/18 and submitted
the Report to the Minister for Local Government within three months of the end of
the financial year. It is now appropriate for Council to adopt the Annual Report
2017/18.

Attachments
1  Annual Report 2017/18 I
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8. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

8.1 APPLICATION TO AMEND PLANNING PERMIT FOR ST CATHERINES

Meeting Type: Special Council Meeting

Date of Meeting: 25 October 2018

Author: Senior Planner

File Name: Application to Amend Planning Permit for St
Catherines

File No: PInApp15/079.01

No Council officers or contractors who have provided advice in relation to this
report have declared a conflict of interest regarding the matter under
consideration.

Executive Summary

This application seeks approval to amend an existing planning permit for
alterations and additions to the St Catherines aged care facility. The original
permit, issued in 2015, will result in an increase in the capacity of the facility from
69 beds to 101 beds. The approved redevelopment has not yet commenced.

The approved development included the replacement of the existing carpark to
the western side of the facility with a large redeveloped carpark to the rear of the
facility, accessing Riley Street via a new driveway to the eastern side of the
facility located between the existing convent and church.

It is understood that St Catherines are no longer permitted to use this land for
access and have therefore applied to amend the planning permit to allow access
to the rear carpark from Ovens Street via the Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre
(WPAC) carpark.

The application to amend has been referred to VicRoads, Council’'s Heritage
Advisor and Technical Services Department, and publicly notified. No objections
have been received.

Council’'s CEO has consented to the planning application proceeding on behalf of
Council as the public land manager of the WPAC site; however Council’s consent
as landowner to the use of Council land for vehicle access has not yet been
provided. Regarding the access proposal concern has been raised by Council
officers representing the interests of the WPAC with respect to traffic impacts and
potential implications upon the future use and re-development of the WPAC site.

This report is presented to Council to make a decision on whether to support St
Catherines’ planning application to amend their current planning permit. Separate
land owner consent to the formalisation of access through Council land must be
considered along with determination of the planning application to amend the
permit.
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VicRoads are a determining authority and its response has supported an
amended permits with no alteration to VicRoads conditions. Minor changes in the
Ryley Street road reserve require a further response which has not yet been
provided by VicRoads. The amended application does not alter the physical
access arrangements from Ryley Street, and the alteration of parking/loading
provision through signage and linemarking has been considered by Council’s
Technical Services.

RECOMMENDATION:
That Council resolves to:

1. issue an Amended Planning Permit with respect Planning Permit
Application 15/079.01 to allow for altered design of the permitted
Aged Care Facility redevelopment, including use of the
Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre for vehicle access, at 59-69
Ryley Street, Wangaratta, in accordance with the permit
conditions contained within attachment 1 but subject to a revised
referral response from VicRoads, including any revised
additional conditions required by VicRoads.

2. advise the applicant and all referral authorities of Council’s
decision.

3. Agree to provision of formal access arrangements via Council’s
PAC land on the basis of the required Section 173 agreement
whereby the access route to Ovens Street may alter in future with
appropriate notice, and the full width of the access driveway will
not always be available when PAC delivery vehicles are
unloading in the driveway.

Property Details

St Catherines aged care facility is located on the northern side of Riley Street,
approximately 150 metres west of its intersection with Ford Street. It is
immediately west of Wangaratta’s core CBD, opposite Merriwa Park. It adjoins St
Patricks Primary School to the north and St Patricks Catholic Church to the east
with a convent and chapel located in between. Boundaries between these uses
are not clearly defined; however, the aged care facility and its immediate
surrounds appear to occupy an area of approximately 7,000sgm.

The current facility consists of a two-storey brick building with a 61 bed capacity.
It is accessed from Ryley Street via an existing crossover to the south-west
corner of the property. Parking spaces are currently available to the front, the
western side and the rear of the facility. The remaining surrounds are comprised
of gardens.
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The rear carpark adjoins the Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre (WPAC) carpark
to the immediate north and it is via this point in which the new formal access is
proposed. There is currently informal access between the subject land and
Council’'s PAC land however no agreement exists for this access.

Land/Address 59-69 Ryley Street, Wangaratta

Zones and Overlays Commercial 1 Zone

Heritage Overlay — Schedule 13

Parking Overlay — Schedule 1

Why is a permit required Buildings and works in the Commercial 1

Zone

Buildings and works, including demolition,
in the Heritage Overlay

Alteration of access to a Category 1 Road

Original Application

The original permit application was for the redevelopment of the current St
Catherine’s Aged Care Facility, increasing the capacity of the facility from 69
beds to 101 beds. The proposal entailed,;

The construction of a new two storey wing with basement to the west of the
current facility, to match the main building. The new wing to comprise 32
additional bedrooms and associated living spaces and amenities over the
ground and first floor, with the basement to provide staff parking and storage
space. The construction of this wing necessitates the removal of the western
carpark and vehicle access to the rear of the site.

Other alterations and additions to the main aged care building including
linkages with the existing convent to the east. The alterations and additions
will be used to provide an additional bedroom, living space, office space, staff
amenities and linkages as well as the revitalisation of key architectural
elements of the main building’s primary facade.

Replacement of an existing verandah and skillion to the side of the adjoining
St Patricks Church to the east with a more sympathetic verandah and carport.

Rearrangement of onsite vehicle access, car parking and loading/unloading
arrangements within the main aged care facility carpark area to be relocated
from the west of the site to the north (rear) of the site. Access to be provided
via a new driveway between the existing convent and church to the east of
the aged care facility.
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e Relocation of western property access crossover and widening of eastern
property access crossover.

A planning permit was issued for the works on 11 September 2015.
Proposed Amendment in Detail

The current application seeks to amend the original permit, primarily through
alteration of the access arrangement to the rear carpark. The majority of the
permitted buildings and works will remain unaltered, including the intended
capacity of the facility.

It is understood that the driveway access arrangement through the subject land
from the rear carpark to Ryley Street as shown on the existing permit is no longer
acceptable to the church with the proposed aged care facility redevelopment now
needing to pursue alternative opportunities to access the rear carpark. This
amended proposal seeks to establish an alternative option to use the existing
WPAC carpark driveway. This driveway extends along the western side of the Art
Gallery and accesses Ovens Street via the existing crossover located between
the Art Gallery and the neighbouring Averleigh office complex, approximately 30
metres east of the St Patricks school crossing.

The application proposes the access arrangement be established using an
easement of way in favour of St Catherines, however as discussed in this report
that legal arrangement would be too inflexible to Council’s future interests. A
Section 173 agreement is proposed and in the draft permit conditions as an
alternative and the applicant is agreeable to this arrangement. The altered
access arrangement will result in the loss of one parking space within the WPAC
carpark.

The application also proposes altered vehicle access arrangements to the site
from Ryley Street with some parking provision within the front Ryley Street
setback of the facility to be maintained. This will result in an alteration of the
existing angled public parking spaces available within the Ryley Street road
reserve.

Delivery vehicles no larger than that of an 8.8m rigid vehicle will be able to
access the onsite loading bay to the rear of the facility via the WPAC carpark.
Larger deliveries are proposed to be via Ryley Street with the application
including plans for a limited hours loading bay within the Ryley Street road
reserve toward the south-western corner of the aged care facility site. It is
proposed that this area be linemarked and signposted so as to be a dedicated
loading bay between the hours of 9.30am and 2pm, before reverting to angled
parking spaces throughout all other hours. Overall, the proposal will result in a
loss of 6 on-street spaces in Ryley Street between 9.30am and 2pm but a gain of
1 on-street space outside of these hours.

Summary of Key Issues

e Impact of increased traffic through WPAC carpark and via WPAC crossover
to Ovens Street.
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e Potential implications upon the use and future development of the WPAC
site.

e Loss of carparking along Ryley Street between 9am and 2.30pm and
potential confusion of parking availability in general.

Relevant Planning Provisions

The following provisions of the Wangaratta Planning Scheme are relevant to this

proposal:
Section Clause Provision
State Planning Policy | 16.01-7S Residential aged care
Framework facilities
19.02-3S Cultural Facilities
19.02-4S Social and cultural
infrastructure
Local Planning Policy | 21.02-2 Activity centres
Framework
21.10-1 Community infrastructure
21.11 Wangaratta Central
Activities Area
22.06 Heritage Places and
Precincts
Zones 34.01 Commercial 1 Zone
Overlays 43.01 Heritage Overlay
45.09 Parking Overlay
Particular Provisions 52.06 Car Parking
52.29 Alteration of access to a
Road Zone, Category 1
Decision Guidelines 65 Decision Guidelines
65.01 Approval of an
Application or a Plan
Referrals

The application was referred to the following referral authorities:
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Authority Section Response

Initial referral response to this
application advising of no objection to
the application subject to the
External Section 55 | VicRoads original permit conditions
VicRoads Referral - Determining | being maintained. A  revised
Authority response, however, is required
because some minor wording
changes are now necessary and has
not yet been provided.

Internal Departmental Advice

Department | Response

: No objection — subject to conditions, including some revision of
Technical . . : L
Services the carparking and loading/unloading arrangement within the

Ryley Street road reserve.

Department
Heritage No objection as proposed amendment has no heritage
Advisor implications.
Advertising

The application was advertised to surrounding landowners and occupants on 16
July 2018, consistent with the original permit application.

A notice was also placed within the Wangaratta Chronicle ‘Rural Connection
Page’ on 20 July 2018.

To date, no objections have been received in relation to the proposed
amendment.

Relevant considerations under the Wangaratta Planning Scheme

Considerations under the Wangaratta Planning Scheme relevant to the proposed
amendment are detailed as follows.

Increased traffic generation through WPAC carpark and via WPAC
crossover to Ovens Street.

The proposed access arrangement through the WPAC carpark will serve 28
parking spaces, 3 bike spaces and a loading bay serving vehicles up to an 8.8
metre rigid truck.
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The application includes the provision of a Traffic Impact Assessment Report
(TIAR) prepared by a traffic engineer on behalf of the applicant.

The report identifies that the majority of traffic generated by St Catherines occurs
during the change in staff shifts which occur at 7.00-7.15am, 2.45-3.00pm and
10.30-10.45pm. The majority of deliveries are conducted during the morning and
early afternoon.

The traffic engineer has carried out modelling to determine the additional traffic
likely to be generated at the intersection of Ovens Street and the WPAC carpark
entrance driveway as a result of the proposed access arrangement. A summary
of existing traffic flows and additional turning movements during peak times
(8.00-9.00am and 2.45-3.45pm) are detailed below.

Figure 4: Existing 2018 AM (8.00-9.00) and PM (2.45-3.45) peak traffic flows at the Intersection of the
Ovens Street and WPAC car park entrance

WPAC entrance
driveway
RHT North
5AM
7PM
LHT
1AM
10 PM
LHT N
27 AM g
20 PM
i — ———
7AM
D B — 6 PM
< 402 AM
409 PM
Ovens Street
LEGEND
18vph denotes existing AM & PM 2018 peak hour traffic volumes
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Figure 5. Additional 2020 AM (8.00-9.00) and PM (2.45-3.45) peak traffic flows at the intersection of the
Ovens Street and WPAC car park entrance

WPAC entrance
driveway
RHT North
+0 AM
+10 PM
LHT
+0 AM
+10 PM
LHT .
+5 AM T
+0AM +10 PM N
+OPM < BRI
— +10 PM
—
Ovens Street
LEGEND
+5 denotes additional AM & PM 2020 peak hour traffic volumes (vph)

The report finds that the impacts of the proposed access arrangement are
primarily related to the low speed turning manoeuvre required at the intersection
of Ovens Street and the WPAC carpark and movements within the WPAC
carpark. The modelling indicates that the increase in traffic will remain within
capacity of the current intersection. Minor delays in right-hand turn in and out of
the WPAC are anticipated but are deemed to be acceptable.

There doesn’t appear to be any assessment as to the safety of the access
arrangement in the vicinity of the nearby school and school crossing or the
adequacy of sight lines; however, Council’s engineers have advised that the
Technical Services Department is satisfied with the anticipated increase in traffic.

Technical Services have requested that a Kurrajong tree within the road reserve
be removed; however, the tree is protected by heritage provisions and Council’s
Heritage Advisor and Arborist have both requested the tree be retained. An
inspection of the intersection indicates that the tree, located to the west of the
intersection, does not cause any significant impact to sight lines. A much clearer
line of sight to the west will continue to be maintained as opposed to sight lines to
the east. The requirement to remove the Kurrajong tree is therefore not
supported.
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Potential implications upon the use and future development of the WPAC
site

Traffic and Parking

To facilitate the proposed operation of the St Catherines carpark, one parking
space to the south west corner of the WPAC carpark is required to be removed.
The traffic report submits that the loss of this space will have an insignificant
impact on the WPAC carpark as the existing maximum utilisation of the carpark at
its busiest time is observed at 83% capacity with 9 parking spaces still available
for public use. Further, the report submits that St Catherines will make a further
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nine spaces within their new rear carpark available for public use. This can be a
condition of any subsequent permit issued.

The existing WPAC carpark two-way traffic aisle along the western side of the Art
Gallery is 5.2m wide, below the Australian Standards’ stipulated minimum 5.5m
width for two-way accesses. Any widening of the accessway, however, will result
in the loss of 11 parking spaces from the WPAC. The traffic report submits that
the reduced width should be supported and the 11 parking spaces maintained in
this instance as observations by the traffic engineer indicate that there is
adequate width between the kerb on the western side of the accessway and the
parked cars to the east to cater for two-way traffic. The parking spaces are
slightly oversized, allowing greater distance between the rear of parked cars and
the accessway. The traffic engineer submits that the linemarking could be
adjusted to provide a 5.5m aisle width.

Council’'s Technical Services support the traffic engineer’s submission and do not
require the parking spaces to be re-linemarked.

The traffic report submits that delivery vehicles accessing St Catherines’ rear
carpark will be limited to vans and small single truck movements of a rate of
approximately two vans and one truck per day. The deliveries will be outside
peak traffic periods for Ovens Street and swept paths have been provided
indicating that vehicles up to an 8.8m rigid truck are to adequately manoeuvre
within the St Catherines carpark area, entering and leaving the WPAC carpark in
a forward direction. The traffic engineer anticipates there to be “only minor
impacts” from delivery vehicles.

Council’'s Technical Services support the proposed delivery vehicle arrangements
to the rear of the subject site.

Representatives of the WPAC facility have raised concerns with respect to the
loss of parking and accessibly through the WPAC carpark in general, particularly
the impact of art gallery delivery vehicles on traffic flow. There is currently no
dedicated loading bay on site for the art gallery. Delivery vehicles instead have to
utilise existing parking spaces immediately adjacent to the gallery (refer to the
photos below). These vehicles protrude into the accessway and block off access
when cars are parked in the parking spaces and the delivery vehicles load from
the accessway itself. Deliveries are relatively infrequent, approximately 20 per
year, but can cause significant disruption for up to 3 hours at any one time while
the delivery vehicle is being unloaded. In order for the St Catherines’ proposal to
progress, safeguards must be included to ensure access through the WPAC
carpark is maintained. It is recommended this be in the form of providing a
dedicated loading bay for the Art Gallery. The parked delivery vehicle will likely
still compromise two-way traffic flow for the small section of driveway they
occupy; however, Council’s engineers consider this reasonable given the
infrequency of deliveries.

The WPAC representatives have also raised concern over pedestrian safety
along Ovens Street and the designated school crossing nearby, as well as right
hand turn in and out of the WPAC carpark. These concerns, however, are not
shared by Council’s engineers.
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Other Implications

In addition to traffic related matters, Council officers representing the interests of
the WPAC have raised concern with respect to the proposed easement of way on
Council’s title impacting upon the future use and development of the WPAC
facility. The 6m wide restrictive covenant along the full 80m length of the site, to
be maintained as access for St Catherines, has the potential to hamper further
growth of this important community asset as it responds to the changing needs
and growth of our community. The Wangaratta Plan, which is discussed later in
this report, highlights the importance of the WPAC and plans to grow and develop
the space.

It is understood that Council is already investigating opportunities for the
additional storage for the WPAC as well as an extension of the Memorial Hall.
The Wangaratta Plan goes beyond these initial plans in a bid to expand the
WPAC space and its interactions with the surrounding public realm, particularly
Ford and Ovens Street. Matters such as access and parking arrangements will
need to be reviewed each time Council further develops the WPAC space.

With respect to relevant planning provisions there are some overarching policy
provisions within the Wangaratta Planning Scheme relating to residential aged
care facilities and cultural facilities and infrastructure.

With respect to cultural facilities and infrastructure, State Planning Policies 19.02-
3S and 19.02-4S encourage a wide range of arts, cultural and entertainment
facilities and community places and buildings to be planned and designed so they
can adapt as the population changes and different patterns of work and social life
emerge. At Local Planning Policy level there is strong emphasis on culture and
arts with Clauses 21.02, 21.10 and 21.11 of the Wangaratta Planning Scheme
providing;

- “Facilitate the development of... community facilities to cater for the wider
region including... community services... and civic functions”

- “Provide well designed multi-purpose public buildings to meet the needs of
local communities”.

- “Provide high quality arts and cultural facilities in Wangaratta”.

- Wangaratta “to be a centre that caters for a diverse range of arts, cultural and
educational experiences utilising a variety of approached and pathways”.

- “Provide infrastructure appropriate to community needs”.
- “Support arts and cultural facilities and programs”.

- “To develop Precinct 2 — Arts and Cultural Hub as a thriving arts and culture
hub...”
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“Reinforce the location of the Performing Arts Centre and Art Gallery as the
cultural heart of Wangaratta.”

While no detailed provisions or decision guidelines are provided within the
Planning Scheme to address the concerns raised by representatives of the
WPAC, these overarching State and Local Policy Provisions highlight the
importance placed upon arts and culture in Wangaratta and the importance of the
WPAC to the community. Further, they emphasise that such facility must be able
to adapt to growth and changes in the community.

To highlight the importance of the WPAC and the benefits of cultural tourism and
cultural assets, WPAC representatives have provided the following;

Annual visitation FY 1718

Gallery = 39,130 (5% increase for FY 1617)

WPAC = 94,386 ( increase for FY 1617)

Intermezzo = 55,000 (included in the WPAC visitation)
TOTAL to the site per annum = 133,516 and increasing

Economic benefit

WPAC

Regional visitor spending of approx. $1.6 million (direct & indirect) per
annum (FY 11/12)

New employment EFT of 19.5 — include direct and indirect (suppliers)

Every dollar of Council subsidy generates approx. $1.80 of regional
economic benefit.

Turnover $1.1 million in FY 1718 (ticket sales for touring companies and
WPAC income)

Grants $115,000 per annum

Gallery

o EFT=22

e Turnover $27,533

e Grants FY 1718 $60,000 + $15,000 + $10,000 + $14,000

e Cultural tourism -approx. 30% of total visitation to the Wangaratta Art

Gallery (39,130) spends at least one nights accommodation in region. This
equates to an economic input of $1.87 million per annum from visitation to
the Art Gallery. (based on Victorian Visitor Economy Strategy, July 2016
www.economicdevelopment.vic.gov.au)

In the year ending December 2017, there were 24.5 million domestic overnight
visits to and within Victoria (of one or more nights duration). 4.1 million of these,
or 17%, were considered to be cultural visits (as having attended a cultural
venue or event during their trip) Cultural visitors stayed longer than the average
visitor. All domestic trips totalled 70.4 million visitor nights, an average stay of 3
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nights each (2.9 exactly) and cultural overnight visits totalled 14.1 million visitor
nights, an average of between 3 and 4 nights each (3.5 exactly).

Attractions for Victoria's domestic cultural tourists were:
e museums and art galleries (45%)

« historic buildings and monuments (36%)

o theatre, concerts and performing arts events (22%)
o festivals, fairs or cultural events (22%)

The average overnight visitor spend in Victoria for intrastate visitors is $160 per
night, with interstate visitors spending $240 a night. Daytrip visitors spend
approximately $95. A resident is estimated to spend around $70 per day,
however most of this is not spent on the visitor economy

Cultural tourism is an attractor and every visitor is a potential rate payer —
increasing local populations. Visitors come, enjoy and fall in love with a
location, and subsequently may decide to move and live locally. There are
strong overlaps between a place being highly liveable and great to visit.
Regionally, increased population growth can be a sustainable way to increase
the capacity of the Council to deliver on community desires and expectations.
Given the forecasted population growth rate of Victoria, the potential for tourism
to be a pathway to decentralising the population is critical and is acknowledged
by State Government. Regional towns and centres have a significant
opportunity to use their ‘visitor appeal’ as a means to attract new residents and
grow their rate base.

It is considered that any restriction placed over the WPAC land that limits its
ability to grow and develop in response to community needs has significant
ramifications on the future growth and development of Wangaratta.

Council Officers have therefore sought legal advice as to the best approach to
support St Catherines in the interim so that they can commence development of
their facility while at the same time not permanently constraining the future growth
and development of Wangaratta’s key cultural and arts facility. The advice
provided is that an easement of way is not an appropriate method for access as it
may affect the future growth and development of the WPAC. An agreement under
Section 173 of the Planning and Environment Act, 1987, and an associated
license arrangement are the mechanisms that have been recommended as they
protect Council’s interests now and into the future. The Section 173 Agreement
would establish a process to facilitate access over Council’s land but does not
guarantee that access until the proper Local Government Act, 1989, processes
have been undertaken and a license to use the land has been granted. This
approach is supported as the best mechanism to facilitate St Catherines’
development but also protect Council’s interests.
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State Policy Provision 16.01-7S (Residential aged care facilities) recognises that
aged care facilities contribute to housing diversity and choice but does require
facilities to be located close to services and transport, to be of a high standard of
urban design and architecture, and be designed to respond to the site and its
context.

While the proposed St Catherines development is considered to have a high
standard of urban design, the applicant has been reluctant to investigate any
alternative designs for the facility in order to maintain direct access to the site
from Ryley Street, despite requests and suggestions from Council’'s Officers.
While not the preferred option of the applicant, Council planners consider there
are design options available that would have minimal impact on the currently
proposed layout of the building to allow access from Ryley Street should this be
necessary in future to support future growth and development of the WPAC.

Parking supply and access in Ryley Street

The application includes alteration of access to the subject site from Ryley Street
in the form of relocating the crossover within the south-west corner of the site
approximately 30 metres to the east. The proposed new access will require 3
existing onstreet spaces to be removed.

Further, a limited hours loading bay is proposed to be provided within the road
reserve immediately adjacent to the existing access. Larger vehicles that are not
able to utilise the rear loading bay will make use of the proposed Ryley Street
loading bay between the hours of 9.30am and 2pm. It is proposed that this area
will be linemarked/signposted such that it is reserved as a loading zone between
the hours of the 9.30am and 2pm but available for carparking outside of these
hours. This will affect 7 parking spaces; 3 existing spaces and 4 new spaces to
be created as part of this application.

With the relocation of the property access and creation of a limited hours loading
zone, the proposal will result a net loss of 6 on-street spaces in Ryley Street
between 9.30am and 2pm but a gain of 1 on-street space outside of these hours.

Council’'s Technical Services do not support the proposed loading bay
arrangement for the following reasons;

- Council’s recent parking study of the Wangaratta CDB shows that the subject
parking spaces are heavily utilised high-turnover spaces between the
proposed hours of restriction (9.30am to 2pm). The submitted traffic report
suggests that the six spaces proposed to be lost are used primarily for school
pick-up and drop-off and that the hours of restriction will not impact upon this;
however, Council’'s recent parking study and observations from Council’s
engineers suggest these spaces are heavily utilised throughout the day, not
just at school pick-up and drop-off times.

- The proposed 14m long space is not large enough for the design 12.5m
delivery truck to enter and exit it.
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- The submitted traffic report indicates that the dedicated loading bay will likely
only be required for up to four deliveries per week. Council’s engineers have
provided that the long-vehicle parking spaces adjacent to St Patrick’s
Presbytery are underutilised and capable of accommodating this small
number of deliveries when required.

Council’s Technical Services therefore request that the submitted plans be
amended to remove the proposed limited hours loading bay, showing this area as
being dedicated onstreet parking. This is supported and should be included as
part of any amended permit issued.

VicRoads Referral Response

The application has been referred to VicRoads as a Determining Referral
Authority in accordance with Section 55 of the Planning and Environment Act,
1987. VicRoads have responded, advising that the authority does not object to
the proposed amendment provided the conditions from the original planning
permit are maintained on any new permit. At least one to two of these conditions,
however, do not property reflect the proposed amendment and need to be
updated. As Council does not have authorisation to amend VicRoads conditions,
Council Officers have contacted VicRoads requesting the authority revise its
conditions. To date, no revised referral response has been provided. It is
therefore recommended that any Council decision to issue a permit must be
subject to a revised response from VicRoads, and any additional VicRoads
conditions included.

Implications

Policy Considerations
The Wangaratta Project — A Masterplan for the City

The Wangaratta Project identifies that arts and culture are a strength within
Wangaratta and play a vital role in the success of the city and its surrounds. The
WPAC and Art Gallery are paramount to this existing and continued success.
The Project states that “adding to and enhancing existing cultural facilities and
filling current gaps would be a game changer in repositioning the city as a major
creative centre”.

The Project finds that there are constraints within the existing set up of cultural
assets within the CBD but identifies that the Ford Street precinct should be
intensified by adding a new building to the existing cluster of cultural facilities to
create a new Cultural Centre.

Other initiatives identified by the Project include;
- anchor the outdoor public arts events and initiatives with the public

plaza/forecourt of the new Cultural Centre which can host Council,
community and art functions, launches, events and performances
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- take a number of steps to improve the existing experience around Ford
Street, including improving the landscape quality and pedestrian experience
around the existing cultural facilities, especially the footpath areas and
exploring opportunities for significant new public artworks

- facilitate events, activities and exhibitions within the Performing Arts Centre
and the Gallery to break out into the outdoor places and spaces of Ovens and
Ford Streets

- establish a clear, direct and pedestrian friendly walkway from St Patrick’s
School, St Catherine’s Hostel and St Patrick’s Church to Ford Street in order
to open up the area to pedestrians

- create simple and efficient car access and parking for the Performing Arts
Centre and Gallery by extending the laneway access through to Ford Street
between the Museum and PAC

The implications of the proposed St Catherines access arrangement upon these
strategic Council initiatives must be considered.

Financial Implications

There are no immediate costs to Council as a result of this proposal, other than
the creation of a restriction potentially affecting the value of the land. Any
restrictions over Council land may also have long-term financial implications on
any plans Council has to redevelop this space.

Legal/Statutory

All procedures associated with the lodgement and assessment of this application
have been done in accordance with the Planning and Environment Act, 1987.

Cultural Heritage
The subject land is not within an area of Cultural Heritage Sensitivity.
Social

Social implications as a result of this application have been addressed
throughout this report and will be way addressed

Environmental/Sustainability Impacts

There are no environmental / sustainability impacts identified for the proposed
amendment.

Economic Impacts
The application is considered to have a neutral economic impact. While the

proposed access arrangement will support the redevelopment of the St
Catherines Aged Care facility, any permanent restriction placed over the WPAC
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will impact redevelopment opportunities of an important community and tourist
asset. The economic importance of the WPAC has been discussed earlier in this
report.

Referrals/Public Notice

2013 — 2017 Council Plan (2015 Revision)

This report supports the 2013-2017 Council Plan:
Goal
We are growing

We ensure new developments comply legislation and the needs and
characteristics of our community.

We ensure that land is used and developed in a manner that is economically,
socially and environmentally responsible.

We will plan, research and advocate for the future to facilitate considered
planning and development in line with long term strategic objectives for the
sustainability of our community and environment.

We will focus on our business to ensure we understand and plan for the long term
opportunities, challenges and priorities that face our growth potential.

We are sustainable

We will plan, research and advocate for the future by accurately understanding
the constraints and opportunities that face our organisation, our community and
our region.

We are established

We will plan, research and advocate for the future to address traffic, parking and
pedestrian challenges to create communities that are safe, easy to navigate and

accessible.

Strateqic Links

a) Rural City of Wangaratta 2030 Community Vision
N/A

b) Other strategic links

N/A

Risk Management
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Likelihood Consequence

Mitigation Action

Planning Permit
- Applicant
appeals permit
conditions at
VCAT

Refuse to issue | Med Low Low Representation  of
a Planning Council at VCAT
Permit -

Applicant

appeals decision

at VCAT

Issue of a| Med Low Low Representation  of

Council at VCAT if
any conditions are
appealed.

Consultation/Communication

Level of

public | Promises to

Tools/Techniques

participation public/stakeholders
Inform Notify potentially affected | Notice of Application sent
parties of the application to surrounding owners and
occupants and an
advertisement placed in
the Wangaratta Chronicle
Consult All  submissions to No external submissions
application will have been received.
considered.
Involve Opportunity to  make | Notice of Application sent
submission. to surrounding owners and
occupants and
advertisement placed in
the Wangaratta Chronicle
Collaborate N/A N/A
Empower N/A N/A

Officers believe that appropriate consultation has occurred and the matter is now
ready for Council consideration.

Options for Consideration

1. Approve the application, through the issue of an Amended Planning Permit,
subject to appropriate conditions. This is the recommended option.

OR

2. Refuse the planning permit application. This is not the recommended option.

Conclusion

The primary purpose of this application is to alter the access arrangement for an
approved redevelopment of the St Catherines Aged Care Facility. It is understood
that differing requirements of each of the Catholic Church organisations
represented on the site has prevented the original planned access from
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proceeding. Instead of redesigning the approved development in response to this
situation, St Catherines is seeking Council’s assistance in making the WPAC
available for access. To date, Council as the owner of the WPAC land has not
made a decision to support or reject St Catherines proposal for formal access via
the WPAC land but has consented to a planning application proceeding.

This report has considered the relevant planning provisions relating to St
Catherines’ proposal. The report finds that, on balance, the proposal can be
supported on planning grounds, subject to the inclusion of permit conditions.

As Council is also the public land manager of the WPAC it must consent
separately to St Catherines’ using its land, however this can be subsequent to
the issue of an amending planning permit.

Attachments

1 Amended Plans I
2 Draft Amended Permit 1
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9. CLOSURE OF MEETING

ATTACHMENTS
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MAYOR’S MESSAGE

It is with a tinge of sadness that | commence my report this year
after losing a long-time family friend and councillor during the
year. Cr Ruth Amery’s passion for the Arts saw her throw herself
into the portfolio with such energy that following her death the
Council looked at ways that she would be remembered, so much
50 that council saw fit to include a budget item to recognise her
love of colour which was always on display. In conjunction with
her family we soon hope to announce an award in Ruth's name,
as part of the Wangaratta Contempaorary Textile Awards which is
held every two years.

Timing issues have again played havoc with our bottom line as we
were unable to complete all of our Capital Works, Recruitment

of staff 10 project manage was a concern last year which didn't
help with our ability to deliver. However | am pleased to repart a
strong Balance Sheet with Cash and Cash Equivalents increasing
by $4.579m to $12,140m and these cash balances will support
the record Capital Works program in 2018/2019 of aimost $40m. Councillors have expressed concern
that Capital Works have lagged in the past two financial years, and they had set a target of at least
85% of this $40m being delivered on time in the 2018/2019 financial year. The other issue we had was
the contamination of North Wangaratta oval. Government funding was received and | am pleased to
say that we have been able to satisfy all the EPA requirements at the site. Development contributions
toward drainage, footpaths and roads (inciuding kerb & channel) produced income of $2.48m which
also added to our income during the year.

Kerbside waste, both recycling and green waste continues to increase and this certainly means our
landfill life is increasing. Total rates for the year of $30.738m was an increase of 1.04% from the
previous year. Federal government funding for local roads of $2.584m also allowed the City to make
some improvements to local roads. Work has commenced on the preparation of land at our previous
landfill site on the eastern side of the freeway for construction of cur own arganics processing plant.
When this is completed in the first half of 2019, we will be able to process our own green waste and not
transport it to Stanhope 140 km away at an annual cost exceeding $600,000. EPA approvals have been
obtained and councillors and staff look forward to this first in Australia plant becorning fully operational.

| would like to thank sincerely the Corporate Management Team and staff for their continued efforts
over the past twelve months. To lose your Director at the end of June put a significant acdditional load
on you to prepare the financial reports and the coundil thank you far your diligence, When you say

it quickly the $62m budget doesn't indicate the requirements of the Local Government Act and the
financial statements needing preparing, but these figures need to be produced in a very short time
frame. | must also pay tribute to our army of volunteers, whether they be in service clubs, sporting
clubs or organisations providing a service, as without you Wangaratta would not be thriving in a way
that | know is getting harder as every year passes by, | thank my fellow councillors for their efforts over
the year, they too are doing their upmost to make Wangaratta “Feels like home".

Ken Clarke OAM
Mayor

2
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AMNHUAL REPORT 2017-2018

CEO’S MESSAGE

Results of the hard work and planning that took place in 2017/18
will be felt for years to come in the Rural City of Wangaratta

It was a year where structures, plans and funding were put in
place to allow Council to deliver big, important projects and
initiatives for our community well into the future.

A clear example of this was in the events and attractions space,
Wangaratta has for years been known as a sporting and live
music destination in North East Victoria. Events deliver economic
and cultural benefits to our community, by bringing in visitors and
new experiences for people to enjoy.

That's why Council adopted a new Events and Attractions Strategy’
this year. It sets the goal of attracting two new marguee events to
the municipality each year.

Wangaratta had a taste of marquee events this year, with the LT AFL pre-season match between
Richmand and Essendon at the Norm Minns Oval and the 2018 Gold Coast Commonwealth Games
Queen’s Baton Relay North East community event held in February.

I'm glad to say Council was able to secure two marquee events, with A Hitch to the Sticks music festival
and the Ovens and Murray Grand Final to be staged in 2018/19 as a result of this strategy. These
events add to Wangaratta's already bustling events calendar.

In the planning space an industrial Land Use Strategy was adopted by Council and significant progress
was made on Planning Scheme Amendment C71, which will open up 300 hectares of land for new
housing. The amendment will create enough raom for the next 15 years of growth in Wangaratta, with
room to accommoedate up to 7000 residents.

Design work was aiso completed on a number of major infrastructure projects, paving the way for
Council to deliver a $38.7m capital works program in 2018/19,

A new Enterprise Agreement Is another item where the majority of the work was done in 2017/18,
allowing for Council to push ahead in coming years. Council has also re-worked its structure so that
there are more project managers and project officers in place to deliver capital works.

Funding support was also gained by Council for important projects that will be carried out in years to
come, with $2.5m received from the State Government towards the Railway Precinct Enhancement
Project, $500,000 towards the Organic Processing Plant, $400,000 from the Federal Government
towards building new hangars at Wangaratta Aerodrome and $334,500 for Coronation Kindergarten.

The progress made in 2017/18 will allow Council to deliver more for our community in 2018/19 and
following years, with more events, more development and a higher capacity to deliver community

infrastructure improvements.

Brendan McGrath, Chief Executive Officer
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RURAL CITY OF WAMNGARATTA

OUR COMMUNITY

Our home is both a vibrant city surrounded by distinctive rural villages.

Our industries include transport and logistics, heath services, education and government agencies,
small business and a nationally significant agricultural industry.

Qur community is a hub for recreational, commercial, educational, tourism and healtn facilities.

Our families value access to childcare and kindergarten services, twenty primary schools, specialist
schools and three secondary facilities. Tertiary education includes a TAFE Institute, a center for
continuing education and a campus of Charles Sturt University.

Our culture annually welcomes the Wangaratta Festival of Jazz and Blues, festivals and celebrations in
our King Valley and rural communities, historical areas of significance and a strong indigenous identity.

The Rural City of Wangaratta is widely recognised as offering a quality lifestyle. Here you can enjoy life
at the perfect pace, balancing family and career aspirations in a vibrant, safe, progressive and caring
community.

PROJECTED
POPULATION
GROWTH BETWEEN
2014 & 2024

28,310

OUR POPULATION 2016

THE PROPORTION OF SENIORS 65
YEARS OR OLDER WILL INCREASE
TQO ALMOST A THIRD OF THE
POPULATION BY 2031

90 % of residents report 4 0% of peaple 4£2.3% of people 27 % of peaple
that people in their neigh- aged over 75 years have an income help as a volunteer
bourhood are willing to live alone less than $400
help each other out per week
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IN THE PAST YEAR WE...

(rr.._- u't»T Q,'-.}

R CITIZEN, YOUNG CITIZEN AND
CcOo «hUTiiT\’ EVE?D

T OF THE YEAR

CAME TOGETHER FOR SPEMT $12% IHPROVING OUR
COMBMUNITY EVENTS INFRASTRUCTURE

DIVERTED 3719 TONNES
CRGANIC WASTE

)i LARNDFILL BY
ING OUR GREEN BINS
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RURAL CITY OF WAMGARATTA

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS

At the Rural City of Wangaratta we're responsible for a broad range of services, from family and
children's services, aged and disability services, community and recreation, parks and gardens and
facilities management; to matters concerning economic development, town and statutory planning
and governance, We also run a Performing Arts Centre and Art Gallery, as well as a Library and Visitor
Information Centre,

Our vision, strategic objectives and strategies to further improve services and facilities are described in
our 2017-2021 Council Plan and the associated 2017-18 Budget and reparted upon in this document.
Refer to the section on Qur Performance for more infarmation about Council services.

The delivery of services, facilities, support and advocacy to achieve the Strategic Objectives is measured
by a set of service performance indicators and measures. Council also has a wide range of responsibilities
under the Victorian and Australian legislaticn.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

A change in the global recycling market was the most significant economic factor affecting Council

in 2017/18. China's new standards for recyclable materials meant that the cost of kerbside recyciing
increaded for ratepayers. Council was able to renegotiate the agreement with its contractor, || Richards, so
that services continued, albeit with a $21 increase to recycling charges put in place for 2018/19, with $15
of this attributed to the global change.

MAJOR CAPITAL WORKS

The capital works budget for 2017/18 of $12m was significantly underspent due to a range of factors.
This included delays in external funding. Despite underspending, there was still progress in delivering
community infrastructure:

« Aguatics Strategy: The construction of a 50m outdoor pool and indoor hydrotherapy pool at the
Wangaratta Indoor Sports and Aquatic Centre did nat begin in the 2017/18 year, This was because Council
was seeking $4.4m in Feceral Government funding, with this money awarded in the 2018/19 financial year.

+ Organics Processing Plant. EPA works approval for the new organics processing plant was granted in
October 2017, allowing for construction to begin. This included clearing of the site, and the buiiding of an
access road. The construction will be completed in 2018/19.

+ Park Lane shared path and drainage. Some $1.3m was spent improving Park Lane in Wangaratta. The
street is adjacent to sporting grounds and had been subject to flash flooding in the past. The project
involved new drainage, an 800m long shared path and the creation of 78 new parking bays. The work was
completed in May 2018.

+ Appin Park Lighting. Appin Park athletics complex recieved six new light towers with a capacity of 250 lux
to meet both Australian Hockey and Australian little athletics standards. The lights were installed in March
2018, with the project 95% complete by June 2018.

MAJOR CHANGES

+ Tne most significant change to occur in 2017/18 was the move to establish an independent board to
run the Wangaratta Livestock Exchange. The skills based board was appointed by Council to begin
running the facility from August 2018.

+  Council also continued to progess a new Enterprise Agreement, with staff voting in favour of the
agreement, though Fair Work australia endorsement occurred in July 2018, outside of 2017/18.
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OUR COUNCIL

In October 2017 Councillor Ruth Amery passed away. Cr Amery had been elected to the City Ward at
the 2016 Council elections. She had held the Arts, Culture and Heritage Portfolio and was a strong

advocate for the work undertaken at the Wangaratta Art Gallery.

ANMNUAL REPORT 2017-2018

Following the passing of Cr Amery a countback was held, where Councillor Ashlee Fitzpatrick was
elected to the City Ward. She joined the Councillors elected at the 2016 election.

Councillor Ken Clarke was re-elected Mayor of the Rural City of Wangaratta on 28 November 2017, with
Councillor Mark Currie elected Deputy Mayor, replacing Cr Harvey Benton,

COUNCILLORS

Cr Ken Clarke
City Ward

k.clarke@wangaratta.vic.gov.au
(429 601 587

Cr Dean Rees

City Ward

d.rees@wangaratta.vic.gov.au
0429623141

Cr David Fuller
City Word

d.fuller@wangaratta.vic.gov.au
0429 545 907

Cr Ashlee Fitzpatrick

City Word

a.fitzpatrick@wangaratta.vic.gov.au
0448 384 600

ELECTED AT THE 2016 GE

NERAL ELECTION

Cr Mark Currie
Worby Ward

m.currie@wangaratta.vic.gov.au
0428 431 607

Cr Harvey Benton
North Ward

h.centon@wangaratta.vic.gov.au

0429 542 928

Cr Harry Bussell
South Ward

h.bussell@wangaratta.vic.gov.au

0429 475 863
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RURAL CITY OF WANGARATTA

OUR PEOPLE

Council is the governing body that appeints a Chief Executive Officer {CEQ). The CEO has responsibility
for the day to day management of operations in accordance with the strategic directions of the
Council Plan. Four Directors and the CEO form the Corporate Management Team (CMT) and lead the
organisation. Detalls of the CEQ and senior officers reporting directly to the CEQ are set out below.

oo

Brendan McGrath
Chief Executive Officer

Barry Green
Director - Development Services

Areas of responsibility
« Strategy, Growth and
Environment

* Planning and Compliance

Jaime Carroll

Director - Community Wellbeing

Areas of responsibility
« Arts Culture and Events
+ Community and Recreation

" Ruth Kneebone (resigned

June 2018)

Director - Corporate Services
Areas of responsibility

* Finance

+ People and Governance

» Customer and information
sen/ices

« Media and Communication

Alan Clark

Director - Infrastructure Services

Areas of responsibility

« infrastructure Planning and
Delivery

+ Field Services

» Waste

« Emergency Management
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ANHUAL REPORT 2017-2018

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

Chief Executive Officer

Executive Services
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RURAL CITY OF WANGARATTA

COUNCIL STAFF

A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) council staff by arganisational structure,
employment type and gender is set out below:

Full Time

31.20

1.00

9.00

3.00

10.00

6420

Casual

0.61

0.00

140

.01

202

Full Time

700

9.00

12.00

1.0C

21.00

110,00

A summary of the number of full time equivalent staff categorised by empioyment classification and

gender is set out below:

Not Applicable 1441 7.00 21.41
Band 1 1.66 191 357
Band 2 0.00 001 001
Band 3 2687 3823 65.10
Band 4 2596 2301 4897
Band 5 19.61 18.00 3761
Band 6 20.49 11.00 31.49
Band 7 1055 1100 2155
Band 8 463 484 9.47
Total 124.19 115 239.19
10
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PEOQOPLE AND CULTURE
WORKPLACE HEALTH AND SAFETY

Council staff, contractors and volunteers work together to ensure we all go home safe and
well today and every day. We have focused on meeting the requirements of the National
Self-insurer OHS Management System Audit Tool, together with providing active support to
staff who are injured at work so that they are able to return and continue to contribute safely
to the organisation. Our Workplace Health and Safety Committees are very active and have
worked on issues such as the Sun Smart Policy, risk assessment of a new staff amenities area
and a review of the Committee Charter, Our Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate was 3.5 which
is a slight increase on the previous year. Our WorkCover premium was $213,942 which was
a 41% reduction on the on the previous year, recognising the significant improvement in

safe work performance and reduction in serious injuries. During the year Council joined the
Municipal Association of Victoria WorkCare self-insurance Scheme.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

During 2017/18 negotiations for our new Enterprise Agreement concluded. Whilst
negotiations proceeded well, the approval process was protracted. The Agreement provides
for annual wage increases of 1.5%, together with changes to the Annual Review process and
allowances. These recognise the impact of rate-capping on Council's operations.

ORGANISATION DEVELOPHMRENT

During the year, Council re-focused on its Community Promise through a training program
for all staff and a community survey. You told us that our provision of aged care services and
our library and gallery are of a high standard; we need to be more responsive when you raise
concerns with us and stick to our timeframes in providing an answer; our compliance staff
are compassionate when managing difficult situations; and we support community events
well. Work is continuing to ensure we improve on our delivery of the Community Promise.

As a mark of respect for our late colleague, Karen Chetcuti, an award was established in her
name. The award recognises the staff member who displays our values, delivers exceptional
services and sets the bar at a high standard to achieve extraordinary outcomes, which are
the things that Karen did every day. The winner of the Karen Chetcuti Award for 2017-18
was Allan Thrum. Allan is an outstanding problem solver who has extensive knowledge

of Council's assets and directs his energy to ensuring they are fit for purpose. Allan is an
excellent, customer-focused project manager who has served our community since 1982,

GENDER EQUITY

As one of the largest employers in Wangaratta, we are taking a leading role in improving
gender equity in our workplace, encouraging a culture of respect and creating a safe and
supportive workplace. Our future success is dependent on attracting and retaining the best
employees and providing them with an inclusive workplace culture where all employees are
valued and included.

Through the Gender Equity Strategy, Council is making a commitment to creating an inclusive
workplace where assumptions are questioned and barriers are removed to ensure equitable
outcomes regardless of gender. Council recognises that addressing gender inequity is crucial
to achieving improved organisational performance, better health and social wellbeing and
the prevention of violence against women.

1"
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OUR PERFORMANCE

COUNCIL PLAN

The Council Plan 2017-21 includes strategic ohjectives, key strategic activities and actions for achieving
these for the four year period. The Plan also includes strategic indicators for monitoring achievement
of the strategic objectives and a strategic resource plan.

PERFORMANCE

Council's performance for the 2017-18 year has been reported against each strategic objective to
demonstrate how council is performing in achieving the 2017-21 Council Plan. Performance has been
measured as follows:

+ Results achieved in relation to the strategic indicators in the Council Plan

+  Progress in relation to the major initiatives identified in the budget

+  Services funded in the budget and the persons or sections of the community who are provided
those services

+  Results against the prescribed service performance indicators and measures.

KEY RESULT AREAS

Council delivers Key Strategic Activities and Actions under 19 objectives. Each contributes to the
achievemnent of one of five Key Result Areas as set out in the Council Pian for the years 2017-21.
The following tables set out the five Key Result Areas as described in the Council Plan.

12
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WE ARE THRIVING

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

As a community we have access to the services and facilities we need to keep us healthy. We can move
around and be active, get medicai attention and join in social, cultural and recreational activities with
our friends and family.

Percentage of children enrclled to participate in the Maternal and Child Healkth Service 78% 80%
Number of visits to aquatic facilities per head of population 5 4.7
Percentage of registered class 1 and 2 food premises that recelve an annual food safety 58% 71%
assessment

Community satisfaction raging for Council's performance with recreation facilities 70 71

The Mitchell Avenue Masterplan which incorporates the former
Yarrunga Pool site, was completed. The design includes: a children’s
Development of the former Yarrunga Pool Site | bush garden; small art trail along the One Mile Creek pathway;

BMX pump track; off-leash dog parks; and parkour eguipment.
Construction will commence in 2018-19,

Federal funding was awarded In july 2018 to enable work to
commence on development of the new aquatic facility at the WISAC
in 2018-19.

Implementation of the Aquatic Plan -
Development of the WISAC aquatic facility.

Instaliation of sports lighting at Appin Park for the Wangaratta Heckey
Appin Park Lighting Upgrade Club and Little Athletics was completed

With focus on empowering peopie with disabilities to achieve their
goals in inclusve communities, progress incdluded presentation of the
‘Same Same but Different’ video documentary, engoing coordination
of Disability Reference Group and commencement of the review of
Council's Community Access and Inctusion Plan,

Implementation of the Rural Access Disability
Program
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This service provides a range of services for the sged and disabled including home

Community Care delivered meals, personal care, transport, dementla care and hame maintenance and
packaged care.

This service provides family oriented support services Including pre- schools, maternal
and child health, child care and family day care.

Children's Services

This service prepares policies and strategies relating to apen space and recreation
throughout the municipality. It provides an extensive range of recreational programs
and opportunities accessible to individuals of all ages and abilities, It also supports
communiy projects and programs and swimming poal facilties.

Community & Recreation

This service pratects the community’s health and wed-being by coordinating food
safety support and immunisation programs, septic tanks and Tobacco Act activities.
Environmental Health The service also works to rectify any public heaith concerns relating to disease
outbreaks, unreascnable emissions, accommaodation standards and foed premises
inspections.

This service pravides Coundi! with strategic and operational safety, health and
wellbeing, organisation development and employee relations support.

MATERNAL AND CHILD HEALTH (MCH)
Satisfaction

The percentage of infants enrofied in the MCH service
who receive the first MCH home vist

Service standard

The percentage of infants enrolied in the MCH service

Service cost
The cost of the MCH service per hour of service $70 $68 No material varlations.
delivered

Participation

Participation in the MCH service [Number of children 78% 80% | No material variations
whao attend the MCH service at least once (in the year) / )
Number of children enrofiad in the MCH service] x100

People & Culture

97% 98% No material variations.

9% 95% No material variations.

Participation
Participation in MCH service by Aboriginal chiidren The variation doe rel: , act

[Number of Aboriginal children who attend the 79% 68% | ‘ég:;:f;o GRS ROE NEtots 0 iy aciion
MCH service at least once (in the year} / Number of ’
Abariginal children enrolled In the MCH service] x100

AQUATIC FACILITIES

Service standard 4 }

The number of inspections by an authorised officer 0 0 Na material variatians.

within the meaning of the Public Health and Wellbeing
<t 2008 carried out per Council aquatic facility
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Critical and major non-compliance notifications
[Number of critical non-compliance notifications
ard major non-comphiance notifications about a
food premises followed up / Number of critical non-
compliance natifications and major non-compliance
naotifications about food premises) x100

Service standard
The number of WorkSafe reportable aguatic facility 0 0 No material variations.
safety incidents
Attendance at indoor aguatic facility
Service cost remained static, however a greater
The direct cost less any income recelved of providing $5 36 amaount of scheduled maintenance
indoor aquatic facilities per visit fell due in 2017-18 causing an averall
increase in costs.
Service cost Increased attendance at outdoor aguatic
) ) ) . faciity due to seasonally hot weather
The direct cost less any income received of providing $12 $9 conditions has offset maintenance costs.
outdoor aguatic facilities per visit causing a reduction in costs.
Utilisation
Utilisation of aquatic facikties. Number of visits to 5 5 Na material variatians.
aquatic facilities £ Municipal population
FOOD SAFETY TIMELINESS internal process reviewed which
. ) . identified customer request status was
The average number of days it has taken for Counxil to 50 3 nat accurately reflecting actions taken,
action food complaints received from members of the Process changed resulting in decrease in
public about the safety or handling of food for sale time 1o action COMPIgInts,
5 standard . ) 58% 71% Ceuncll has Increased resourcing of the
The percentage of registered Class 1 focd premises function.
and Class 2 food premises that receive an annuat food
safety assessment
Sef 'IF " Cogt ) $348 $548 | Additional staffing has increased the cost
The direct cost of the food safety service per foad of the service.
premises registered by Council, or for which Council
has receved notification during the year
Health and Safety 100% 55% Number of business closures during the

reporting period, additionally mobiie
premises have been followed up in other
municipakties and found compliant.
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WE ARE GROWING

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

Our economy and community are growing because we offer exciting opportunities and potential, We
have a strong economic development strategy and continue to attract new businesses, residents and
visitors to the region. The services, initiatives, major initiatives and service performance indicators for
each service area are described Delow.

The median number of days taken between receipt of a planning apalication and a decision 69 59

The percentage of planning decisions made within 60 days B81%

e Strategy was adopted by Council on 17 Qctober 2017 and
will be implemented via an amendment to the planning scheme.
Industrial Land Use Strategy The Strategy provides an understanding of Councifs expectations
about land use and development matters relating to industrial
development.
Consultants were engaged to undertake initial consuftation and
develop a draft Plan for Council endorsement and communi
::xn'&“:':n“ the Wangaratta Hospital consultation. The plan cutiines initiatives and actions to in!o?m
expected changes to the Wangaratta Planning Scheme that will
complement and guide the vision of 3 Health Precinct in Wangaratta.

The growth area plans are currently being implemented via planning
Progression of planning for the North West and | scheme amendment, The amendments have been referredto a
South Wangaratta Growth Areas Planning Panel and any recommendaticns arising will be considered
by Coundil,

18
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The economic development service assists the organisation to fadifitate an ervironment that

Economic Development is conducive to a sustainable and growing local business sector and provides oppertunities
for local residents to imprave their skill levels and access employment.

This service provides support to tourism opevators through industry actiities, grants and
Tourism the Visitar Information Centre. This service provides information and advice te prospective
Tourism Businesses.

The Planning service (inciuding statutory planning) processes all planning applications,
provides advice and makes decisions about development proposals which require a
planning permit, as well as representing Coundil at the Victorian Civil and Administratve
Tribuna! where necessary. It monitor':';’ the Co&fmcil's Planning Scheme as well as preparing

major polficy documents shaping the future of the City. It also prepares and pracesses
Planning and Bullding amendments to the Council Planning Scheme and carries out research on demographsc,
urban development, econamic and social issues affecting Council. The Building service
prevides statutory building services to the community including processing of building
permits, fire safety inspections, audits of swimming pool barriers and investigations of
compiaints and itlegal works.

This senvice provides management support for, and includes the Wangaratta Livestock
Livestock Selling Complex | Exchange, In 2018-19, the Wangaratta Livestack Exhange will be operated as an
independent compary, wholly owned by the Rural City of Wangaratta.

STATUTORY BUILDING

Timeliness 69 59 Procedures reviewed with a
The median number of days taken between receipt of a focus on customer service.
planning application and a decision on the application

Service standard : "y
Thi f planning application decisions made within 73% 81% Procedures reviewed with 3
ws.:jg;rcentage af planming app 5ma focus on customer service.
Service cost

The direct cost of the statutory planning service per planning $2,383 $2,432 | Nomaterial variation.
application received

Declsion Making

Council planning decisions upheld at VCAT [Number of VCAT 'Ihege WEre no VCA‘{
decisions that did not set aside Councif's dedisicn in relation to 0% 0% decisiens mace in either

a planning application / Number of VCAT decisions in relation to years,

planning applications] x100
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WE ARE ESTABLISHED

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

Cur community has develoged to make sure that we can connect and interact with each other by our
road network and pathways, in accessible community spaces that pravide activity and purpose, through
effective telecommunications networks and within community facilities that are well maintained and
activated. The services, initiatives, major iniatives and service performance indicators for each service

area are described below,

W wifl achieve a 90% annual completion rate for our capital project defivery 59% 52%
We wifl achieve 25% completion of strategic actions within the Asset Management strategy annually - 25%
We will meet 100% campliarce with schedule road inspections - 100%
We will meet 90% compliance with defect rectification - 96%
Community satisfaction rating for Council's perfermance on the condition of sealed local roads 56% 58%
Community satisfaction rating for Council's performance on the maintenance of unsealed local roads | 46% 50%
Community satisfaction rating for Council's performance on the condition of local streets and 57% 60%
footpaths
e
The design and procurement stages were completed for a large
Asset renewal program Waldar drainage: and e e Wil Creek pedesrian bricges Wi
defivery to proceed in 201819,
CBD Masterplan Implementation consultation. The P wi be iralsed for mplementaion i 218,19,
20
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This service prepares long term maintenance management
programs for Council's property assets in an integrated anc
prioritised manner in order to optimise their strategic value
Asset Planning and service potential,

These inckude municipal bulldings, pavikons and other
community buikdings.

This senvice provides road and bridge maintenance, street
and footpath cleaning, drainage maintenance, waking/
oycling path maintenance and routine bridge maintenance.
Aiso maintenance and planning for renawal and upgrades to
Councds sports grounds.

This senvice provides tree pruning planting, removal,
Field Services planning and street tree strategies, mansgement of all parks
and gardens and infrastructure maintenance, conservation
of parkland areas, creeks and other areas of environmental
significance. it also provides street cleaning, leaf collection,
weed removal, drain pit cleaning and street litter bins
throughout the municipality.,
This service proviges strategic planning, policy development
and day-to- day management of traffic, infrastructure, as-
sets, transport, drainage and design ssues in Council,
This service provides coordination of emergency response
and recovery from natural disasters such as bushfire and

Technical Services flooding and management of the aerodrome.
This service also undertakes design, tendering, contract
management and supenvision within Council's capital works
program.
) ) " N - ) .
Infrastructure Management This senvice provides strategic direction to the infrastructure

services directorate.,

Requests relating to sealed

ROADS roads were centralised
Satisfaction of use 19 33.72 through our oustomer
Number of sealed local roads requests request management
system.
ition
S 99% 99% No material variations,

Sealed local roads maintained to condition standards

Service Cost

Cost of sealed Jocal road reconstruction $83 $88 No materiai variations.

No resealing accurred in

Cost of sealed local road seaiing $4 $0 2017/18

Satisfaction

Satisfaction with sealed local roads 56 56 No material variations.

22
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WE ARE INSPIRED

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

As a community we have opportunities for everyone to embrace the arts, to attend vibrant and exciting
events, and to experience a community that is creative and evolving. It is easy for everyone to volunteer,
to talk about the things that matter, to be involved and understand the way decisions are made and to
celebrate our stories and heritage. The services, initiatives and service performance indicators for each
service areas are described below.

Ticket sales the Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre - 23,154
Attendance at the Wangaratta Gallery 40,595 42,000
Conference and meeting bookings at the Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre 23 172
Percentage of municipal population who are actve library users 16% 15%
Community satisfaction rating with overall performance of arts centres and libraries 79 78
Community satisfaction rating with community consultation and engagement 55 49
Community satisfaction rating with Councd performance in making decisions in the interest of 50 49
the community

Community satisfaction rating with customer service Al

Community satisfaction rating with Coundd performance on community and cultural activities 72

Customer Focused Website A riew website was delivered providing the communkty

with easier access to Councif information.

Customers are now able to lodge a request for services
online. The request management system provides
acknowledgement of the receipt of requests and aliows
staff to keep track of progress,

Customer Reguest Management System

The official opening accurred on 31 May 2018, There
are additional spaces for chitdren and a casual meeting
space and irvolvement of community groups in providing
programs for community members.

Library Community Space

Community Promise training has been delivered to 62%
of staff. A survey of customers was undertaken and
plans implemented to improve customer service, The
Survey is now a constant in all service delwery areas,

Our Community Promise
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This senvice pravides theatre senvices inctuding technical
staging advice and performance operations, facilities for
presentations induding events for children, families and
older people and exhibitions of works by local artists,

function and catering services including seminars, meetings,
conferences, expos and a café.

Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre

This service pravides avaried program of ans and cultural
events and activities. it also plans and develops arts and
cultural facilities and infrastructure and develops policies
and strategies to facilitate art practice.

Wangaratta Gallery

This service provides events for the municipalzy and cultural

Events gevelopment,

This service pravides a public library with customer focused
service that caters for the cultural and educational neads
Wangaratta Library of residents and provides a focal point for the communi-

ty where they can meet, relax and enjoy the facifties and
services offered.

This service pravides youth development programs and

Youth Services supports youth health welibeing.

This service pravides, supports and maintains reliable and
cost effective information and computing systems, facilities

h ti < and infrastructure, IS also delivers records management and
. and Customer s Geospatial information Systemss (GiS) enabling us to deliver
services in a smart, productive and efficient way. We also
provide Customer Services to the community.

LIBRARIES
Utilisation 3 3

The number of library collection item leans per library collection
item

No material variations,

Resource standard
The percentage of the library collection that has been pur- 48% 46% No material variations.
chased in the iast 5 years

Servios cost $4 $5 No material variations
The direct cost of the library service per visit )
Participation

Active library members {Number of active iibrary members / 16% 15% No material variations,

municipal popuiation] x100
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WE ARE SUSTAINABLE

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

To ensure our long term viability and capacity to deliver quality services and infrastructure, we will
continue to meet the changing and complex challenges that face us. We focus on how we can do things
better, reduce our environmental and economic impact, and create lasting benefits for our community
and future generations. The services, initiatives, major initiatives and service performance indicators for
each service area are described below,

Total expenses per property assessment kept in accordance with Councis Strategic
Resources Plan $3.819 $3,547
We will achieve an annual ratio of interest bearing loans and botrowings to raterevenue of 32% 28%
less than 70%
We will achieve an annual adiusted underlying surpius (or deficit) result of 2% 8%
breakeven or better
We vill receive an unqualified financial audit report every year 100% 100%
The percentage of Council resolutions made 3t an ordinary or special council meeting of
Council, or at a meeting of a special committee consisting only of Councillors, closed te the 3% 4%
public
Community satisfaction rating for how Council has performed in erwvironmental sustainability 65 66
The percentage of garbage, recyclables and green organics collected from
kerbside bins that is diverted from landfill 61% 61%
CNJ war! commence! w!!t ! e plant was being
Construction of organics processing plant shipped from overseas. Construction will continue in
2018-19.
The long term financial plan framework was updated
Update the framework for our long term financial plan following consultation with Council's Audit Advisory
Committee,

Implementation of the Plan was completed on
Roadside weed management plan time, within budget and in keeping with regulatory
requirements,

A business health check was implemented in

assocation with consultants, KPMG. Specific technalogy
improvements Included an SMS system for maternal and
child health services and electronic disability permits,

Implementation of improved technology processes
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This senvdice provides staff at school crossings throughout
the municipality.

It maintains and improves the health and safety of people
and animals by providing animal management services
including a pound, registration and administration, after
hours service and an emergency service. it also provides
education, regulation and enforcement of Local Laws

Including parking and cther compliance activities and
relevant State legislation,

Community Compliance

This service develops environmental policy, coordinates and
implements environmental projects and works with ather
Environmental Services services to improve Council's environmental performance.
Reducing greenhouse gas emissions within Counci
opevations and the community are a key priority for Council.

This service provides kerbside collections of garbage,

Waste recyciables and organics.

This service provides governance and support to the
Governace and Risk organisation, business planning and reporting, and strategic
risk management.

This unit provides financial services to both internal and
external customers inciuding the management of Council's
Financial Services finances, payment of salaries and wages, payment of
supphers, raising and collection of rates and charges and
vaiation of properties throughout the municipality.

This service provides strategic advice, governance, and over-

Corporate Services Management sees cur financial sustainabidity.
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GOVERNANCE An increase in tenders requiring
confidential decisions, together with the

‘I‘ram;.)ar«.\c.y ) 2% 4% establishment of 2 private company and
Council decisions made at meetings ¢closed to the the appointment of Directors, accurred
public at confidential special meetings.
Consultation and engagement
Satisfaction with community consuitation and 55 56 No material variations
engagement
Attendance R

99% 97% No material variations

Councillor attendance at Councit meetings

Service cost Transition from Administrators to
Cost of governance $79.967 | 343511 Councillors and non-election year.
Satisfaction
N terial variati
Satsfaction with Council Decisions 0 1 R SISO VRIS
WASTE COLLECTION
Satisfaction 235 57 We befieve that the previous year's data
The number of kerbiside bin collection requests per was calculated incorrectly.
1,000 kerbside bin coflection households
Service standard Kerbside collection remains with
. ) established contractor. Collection routes

The number of kerbside collection bins missed per 13 6 ) ol .

! ! lecti i are well-knowm, resulting in a reduction
10,000 scheduled kerbside coliection bin lifts of bins missed.
Service cost
The direct cost of the kerbside garbage bin collection $120 $117 No material variations,

service per kerbside garbage collection bin

Service cost

The direct cost of the kerbside recyclables collection $48 $47 No material variations
senvice per kerhside recyclables collection bin

WASTE DIVERSION

Kerbside collection waste giverted from iandfill
[Weight of recyclables and green organics collected 61% 61%
from kerbside bins / Weight of garbage, recyclables
arvd green arganics collected from kerbside bins]
xi00

No material variations

29
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L & f

ANIMAL MANAGEMENT '”Cs‘l?;if ;’e‘g:a;ft‘;y;’t‘;ﬂ

custome wes ..
Timeliness has resulted in increased
The average number of days 10 24 volumes of recorded
it has taken for Council to customer requests, with
actien animal management backlog of recerded closing
related requests after customer notified.
Service standard
The percentage of colfected ) .
registrable animals under 60% 62% No material variations.
the Domestic Animals Act
1994 reclaimed
Service cost o There was a 250% increase
The direct cost of the animal in the costs of domestic
management service per $44 $96 animal pound services
registrabie animal under the rovided by the RSPCA
Dornestic Animafs Act 1994 o !
Health and Safety
Animal Management
Prosecutions, Number 0 o No material variations
of successful animal
management prosecutions
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GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT CHECKLIST

The following table shows the results of Council's assessment against the prescribed governance and management
checklist.

2 Commmi!y enmnt guidelines

fto determine w

3 Strategic Resource Plan
(plan under section u:"'ne At o

Won-Anancial resouress

‘.v*, n 1h,¢ o

st the neaxt

4 ﬁ:‘.anrm; years)

4 Annual budget

{plan under section 136 of the At setting out the senvic

provided and over the nexd

monhs and the funding 2

§ Asset management plans

iplans that sei out the asset maintena

i the rating struciure of Council

v !

) risk of fraud)

unci's commitment and app

3 crocedy
06 O Q( ods, sarvices and works)
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STATUTORY INFORMATION

Documents Available for Public Inspection

In accordance with regulation 12 of the Local Government (General) Regulations
2015 the following is a list of the prescribed documents that are available for
inspection or copies of the documents can be obtained for the purposes of section
222 of the Local Government Act 1989 (the Act) at 62-68 Ovens Street Wangaratta:

« a document containing details of overseas or interstate travel (other than
interstate travel by land for less than 3 days) undertaken in an official capacity
by any Councillor or member of Council staff in the previous 12 months,
including—

o the name of the Councillor or member of Council staff; and

o the dates on which the travel began and ended; and

o the destination of the travel; and

o the purpose of the travel; and

o the total cost to the Council of the travel, including accommodation costs;

« the agendas for, and minutes of, ordinary and special meetings held in the
previous 12 months which are kept under section 93 of the Act, other than
those agendas and minutes relating to a part of a meeting which was closed to
members of the public under section 89 of the Act and are confidential
information within the meaning of section 77(2) of the Act;

« the minutes of meetings of special committees established under section 86
of the Act and held in the previous 12 months, other than those minutes
relating to a part of a meeting which was closed to members of the public
under section 89 of the Act and are confidential information within the
meaning of section 77(2) of the Act;

« aregister of delegations kept under sections 87(1) and 98(4) of the Act,
including the date on which the last review took place under sections 86(6)
and 98(6), respectively, of the Act;

* adocument containing details of all leases involving land which were entered
into by the Council as lessor, including the lessee and the terms and the value
of the lease;

e aregister maintained under section 224(1A) of the Act of authorised
officers appointed under that section;

« alist of donations and grants made by the Council in the previous 12
months, including the names of persons who, or bodies which, have
received a donation or grant and the amount of each donation or grant.

34
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Best Value

In accordance with section 208B(f) of the Local Government Act 1989, at least
once every year a Council must report to its community on what it has done to
ensure that it has given effect to the Best Value Principles. Council incorporates
Best Value Principles through regular business planning and performance
monitoring processes and through a commitment to continuous improvement,
innovation and sustainability.

Council undertook a Business Health Check in order to identify areas for
improvement. These included corporate planning, project management and
procurement,

Carers Recognition

In accordance with the Carers Recognition Act 2012, Council is required to report
annually on its care measurement obligations under Section 11 of that Act. Council
has taken all practicable measures to comply with its responsibilities outlined in the
Carers Recognition Act 2012. Council has promoted the principles of that Act to
people in care relationships who receive council services, to people in care
relationships, and to the wider community by:

¢ distributing information and resources through relevant council services; and

¢ providing information to organisations represented in council and
community networks. Council has taken all practicable measures to ensure
staff, Council agents and volunteers working for Council are informed about
the principles and obligations of the Act by including information on the care
relationship in:

o Council induction and training programs for staff working in Community
Care; and

o Council induction and training programs for staff working in front-line
positions with the general community.

Council has taken all practicable measures to review and modify policies, procedures
and supports to include recognition of the carer relationship and has provided respite
services for carers.

Contracts
During the year Council did not enter into any contracts valued at $150,000 or more
without first engaging in a competitive process.

w
v
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Disability Action Plan

In response to its obligations under the Commonwealth Disability Discrimination
Act 1992 and the Victorian Disability Act 2006, the Rural City of Wangaratta has in
place a Community Access and Inclusion Action Plan (the Plan). This Plan is aimed
at minimising barriers and providing people living with disability equity of access
to Council services and facilities. The Plan is required to be registered with the
Human Rights and Equal Opportunity Commission and its implementation
reported on in Council’'s Annual Report.

With a strong focus on best practice principles and building strong partnerships, the
Plan will help Council to improve access for people with a disability. Notable actions
that Council has initiated include:

« broad community consultation targeting individuals living with disability,
families and carers and support groups to better inform access and
inclusion planning;

« raising the profile of the Rural Access Program, which seeks to work in
partnership with groups, businesses and the broader community;

« promotion of events such as International Day of People with a Disability;

« addition of assistive equipment, in particular a portable hearing loop, to the
Community Resource Kit;

« capacity building through providing resources for a range of disability support
groups;

+ development and promotion of an accessibility map for Wangaratta's
central business district;

¢ increased accessibility to community buildings and community infrastructure

« facilitation of a municipal Accessibility Reference Group, incorporating
people with a disability, their families and carers; and

« establishment of the RAD (Regional/Rural Advocacy Disabilities) Project to
improve inclusion for young people with a disability

A new Community Access and Inclusion Action Plan is currently being finalised and
will focus on four key areas prioritised through community consultation. These are:

¢ an active and engaged community;

¢ communication for all;

» accessible buildings and infrastructure; and
e civic leadership.

36
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Domestic Animal Management Plan

In accordance with the Domestic Animals Act 1994, Council is required to prepare a
Domestic Animal Management Plan at four yearly intervals and evaluate its
implementation in the annual report. Council adopted the Domestic Animal
Management Plan 2014-2018 on 15 July 2014. This plan is currently under review,

Council has conducted required investigations and enforcement for reported barking
dogs and animals at large.

Council has promoted the use of its cat traps program and the traps are used
regularly by residents.

Food Act Ministerial Directions

In accordance with section 7E of the Food Act 1984, Council is required to publish a
summary of any Ministerial Directions received during the financial year in its
annual report.

No such Ministerial Directions were received by Council during the year.
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PERFORMANCE STATEWMENT - FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
Description of the Municipality

One of Victoria's most geographically diverse and scaenic regions, Wangaratta Rural City Councl offers a blend of aity life
and welcoming villages, native bushland, pastoral landscapes and snow-capped peaks. Located in the heart of North
East Victorla, Wangaratia is a Jeading regional city in an area of breathtaking beauty.

There are over 27,000 residents living in the Rural City of Wangaratta. The largest urban centre in the municipality is
Wangaratts. Prominent townships and vilages incdude Boorhaman, Cheshunt, Eidorado, Everton, Glenrowan, Oxey,
Milawa, Moyhu, Peechelba, Springhurst, Tarrawingee, Whitfield and Whorouty, Councll covers an area of 3,639 square
kilometres.

The regional economy s exceptionally diverse. Wangaratta is home 1o major agricultural, manufacturing, transport and
distribution activities and is the regional headquarters for several stale government agencies.

Basis of Preparation

Council is required to prepare and include a Performance Statement within its Annual Report'. The Performance
Statement inciudes the resuits of the prescribed sustainable capacity, service performance and financial performance
indicators and measures together with a description of the municipal district and an explanation of material vanations in
the results. This statement has been prepared o meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1389 {the Act) and
Local Govermment (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014,

Where applicable the rasulls in the Performance Statement have been prepared on accounting bases cansistent with
those reporled in the Financial Statements. The other resulls are based on nformation deawn from Council information
systams or from third parties (e.g. Austratian Bureau of Statistics).

The Performance Statement peasents the actual results for the current year and for the prescribed fnancial performance
indicators and measures, the results forecast by Council's Sirategic Resource Plan, The Local Government {Planning
and Reporting) Regufations 2074 requires explanation of any matenal variafions in the results contained in the
Performance Statement. Councd has adopied materiality thresholds of + / - 10% for each indicator and explanations have
not been provided for variations below the materiality thresholds unless the variance is considered to be material because
of ifs nature.

The forecast figures induded in the Performance Statement are those adopted by Council in its Strategic Resource Plan
on 19 June 2018 and which forms part of the Council Plan. The Strategic Resource Plan includes estimates based on key
assumptions about the future that were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability over the
long term. Detailed information on the actual firancial results is contained in the General Purpose Financlal Statements.
The strategic resource plan can be obtained by contacting Council.

' "Annual Report® means an annual report prapared by a council under sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act
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WAMNGARATTA RURAL CITY COUNCIL
PERFORMANCE STATEMENT - FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Sustainable Capacity Indicators
Resufts
Indicator | BTN Matarial Variations
Own-s0urce revenie
Own-sourse revenue’ perheadof  §1284  §1366 S1416 $1440  No materal varations
Recurrent grants : : Changes t the Commanwealth program funding for Aged and
Recurront grants per head of $T0T 84 ST 8882 oy sevices has resubied in 3 decrease in recument grant funding
ff‘“»w_ W - '3} " for these services In 201 7/16FY.
Population .
Expenses pev head of municipsl S1868 2011 S2135 $1.89)  Councils expendduee in 2016/17FY was higher than usual because of
papulation - accounting adustmants for waste management assets and landhil
Infrastructure par had of SINT22  B12271 515466  $96.480  Council's asseds wers revalued during the year ended 30 June 2017,
nwwpdmtm ) with roads and bridge assets ncreasing in value,
Popusdation density per fength of " " " 13 No material variaions
foad
Disadvantage
Relative socio-econamic Rl 4 4 4 No material variations

"own-source revenus” means adjusted underlying revanue other $an revenue Tat is not undar the control of councll (including govemment grants). “adjusted
(8) nonrecurent grants used o fund capital expenditure; and
(b} nor-monetary asset contributions; and
(c] contibutions to fund capal expendiure from scurces other than $hose refamed % in pacagraphs (3) and (B)
7 "population’ means the resident population esimated by coundl
* “Infrastructure” means noncurrent property, plant and equipment exchuding land
5"ocal road” means a seded or unsealed road for which the council is e responsible road authorty under the Road Management Act 2004 and includes oight-of-
ways and laneways
“ "relative socio-economic disadvantage”, in relation lo @ municipality, means the relalim socio-econcrmic disadvantage, axpeassed as a decle for the rokmant
financial year, of the area in which ihe muricality is localed acooding 1o 18 Index of Relative Sccio-Eoomomic Disadvantage (Catalogus Number 2033.0.55.001) of
SEIFA. "SEIFA" means the Socio-Economic indaxes for Areas published from tme to tme by the Australian Bureau of Siatstics on s Intemet website
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PERFORMANCE STATEMENT - FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
Service Performance Indicators

Rasuils

Service ! indicator /| ST TS Makerial Variations
Aquatic faciities
Wlisation
Uhivsanion of squanc faclies 56 81 50 47  Nomaedal variaions

Animal
Health and safety
Animal management prosecutions 1 0 0 [ No material vanations

Food safety
Health and safoty
Critical and major non-compiance 100% 100% 100% 55% Number of business closures during 1he reporing period, addiionally

notifications mobile premises have been folowed up in ather municipaities and
Governance

Satisfaction

Satisfaction with counai decisions @ @ 5 L) No material variations

m_mmwm

Participation
Participation in HACC service™ 5% 2% NA NA  Reporting osased effecive 1 July 2016

iy
Paticipation in HACC sanvice by % 9% NA NA  FRaporting ceased effecive 1 July 2016
CALD™ pacp

7 “eritical non-compliance outcome notification’ means a notification received by Councd under saction 19N(3) or (4] of the Food Act 1584, or advice given 0
Counci by an authonized officer under $hat Act, of a deficiency that poses an immediate serous threat to public health.

* ‘major non-compliance outcome notification” mears a notification received by a Council under sechon 19N13) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to
Council by an authorised officer under hat Act, if it refates 10 a deficiency that does not pose an immediale sedous threat 10 public heaith but which may do s0if no
remedial action i taken Typicaly audior notifications that fall into s catagory wil be repsived under section 198(4) at the condusion of the awdit process,

#Yood premises” has the same meaning as in the Food Act 1964

¥ "HACC service™ means home help, persanal care or community respite provided under the HACC program

1 Yargot population” has the same meaning as in the Agreement enlered into for the purposes of e Home and Community Cave Act 1965 of the Commonwealth
2 CALD" means ouitualy and iinguistically dverse and relers 10 peesons bom cutside Austeaia in @ country whose naticnal language is not English
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WANGARATTA RURAL CITY COUNCIL
PERFORMANCE STATEMENT - FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Service Performance Indicators (continued)

Service | indicator/ W5 2818 W17 ~ L1 Waterial Variations

Libraries

Participei 7

Active Norary members 2% ™ 1% 15%  No materal variations
Maternal and child health

Participation
Participation in the MCH senvice N ™ % 0%  No matenal variations

Participstion
Participation in the MCH senvice by ™ "% 9% 88%  Reduced number of individuals idenifying as of Aborignal or Tormes
Abanginal children ™ Svait lslander origin, no proactive actions idendfied with varance.

Safisfaction
Satisfaction with seafed local 57 58 % 56 No material variations
m”’

making
Councd planning dscisions upbeld &% W% 0% NA Mo decisions were refarred to VCAT

Waste Collection

A% 56% 81% $1%  No matedal variations

3 "active library member” means a member of a fbeary who kas borrowed # book from the library

14 "population” means the resident population estintaded by councl

5 *MCH service” means the Matemal and Child Health Service provided by a counci to support the haalh and development of children within the municipality from
birth until school age

% "Aboriginal child” means a child who is an Abarigeal person. “Abodginal person” has ¥ same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heatage Act 2006

" “sealed local roads’ maans sealed roads wnder the conlrod of the municipaiity and includes te read pavement and road seal (and kerb and channel where
applicable}

a1
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AMNMUAL REPORT 2017-2018

PERFORMANCE STATEMENT - FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Financial Performance Indicators

Dimension / Indicator! | 215 2016 FUE U T LS AN Matedel Viadiations -

Oporating position
Adjusted underlying resuit
Adusted undarying sutpius jor
daficit) ™

ek

KV

In some nstances, Council's
adjusted underlying swphus or
daficit has been impacted by the
Sming of receipt of the annual
Financial Assstance Grants
Caowncil projects an adiusted
wrderlying deficit &or the Sorecast
years hased on ncreasing
depraciaton and barowing costs n
connection with new caplal
expenddure.

Liquidsty
Working capitsi

Currant assals™ comperad
cument RsddDes™

PR ¢

Unvestricted cash
Unestricted cash? compared 10
cument fsbihes

3% 1N 250N % 1604  te0N  M5%

@R N TSR N BN N W

Councis working capiial In 2017
and 2018 is unuscaily strong due %o
caused by a defermal of signficant
capityl works expendture. The
working capital will recuce i the
forecast penod as Councll improves
its delivery of the capilal works

budget.
Counci's cash batances are hNgh in
2018 and 2016 compared to other
years dua 1o a significant number of
camy-over captal works.
Urrestricted cash wil deteniorate in
the forecast penod as Coundil
incraases the capital works
axpondiure and increates
borrowings costs % fund new
capital ingrovements in the

Obligations
Loans and borrowings
Loans and borromiegs comparad o

Loans snd boromings repayments
camparsd 10 rales

W% I R’ W 55K

'* “adjusted underlying surplus {or deficlt)” means adjusted underying revenus less total expendiure

¥ “adjusted underlying revenue” means total income ofher fian—
(a) mon-securrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and
(b)  mon-onetary assel contrituions, and
{c) contributens % fund capial expenditure from sowoes other than those redermed to In paragraphs {a} and (b)

“"current assels” has e same meaning as n the Austrafian Acoounting Standards (AAS)
“ *current labllitles” has he same maaning a3 in the AAS

Caounch projects an ncrease in
bomowings in future years to fund
Developer Contrivusion Plan
inatives, the Aquatic strategy and
CBO Masterplan improvamants. No
mow borrawings ware driren down
in the 201T1EFY however
tepayments of existing loans wese
compieted as planned, resulting in
the lowest level of barrowings for
e periods shown,

Council projects an increase in
Boerowings in Aiure years bo fund

# *unrestricted cash” means 3 cash and cash equivalents other !han resincled cash. “restricted cash” means cash and cash equivalents, within the meaning of
the AAS, fhat 220 not availabile Sor use other Pan for 2 pupose for which It is restricied, 2nd indudes cash 1o be used %o fund captal warks expexStung from the

previous Snancial year
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"okt 3% TR RENTN 26 PR,
g e xed bonoaiegs ) Fola tevencd)
ol

Asset renewal
Assel renewal® compared lo

P sprns’ e Asie! dapdoiion]
(e

“ *non-current liabllities™ means all Sabides ather than currant abides
™ “own-source revenue” means adjusted underlyng revenue ather than revenie that is not under the controf of councd (including govemment grants
* “asset renewal expenditure” means expendilure on an exigling assat of on raplacing an exising assel that returms the servics capabilty of the assel o &

arignal capabiity
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PERFORMWMANCE STATEMENT - FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
Financial Performance Indicators (continued)

Rasulls Forecasts

Dimension / indicator ) 2045 218 IO T T TR T Matedal Variations

Rafes compared to odusted % W% 4% BN SN eN  Gaw s o maevaimons

Ratos compared to property valies  0.6% 05% 0%  08% 08% 08% 06% 08N  Nomateis variasons

et o, T A

Volalisly in expenses per property s
EE““'I:‘ tevel partly caused by non-recurring
@penditure in 201617FY for maste
Expenses per progeny assessment  §3540  $3578  §3819 S3.547 $3665 $3884 §4023 $4030 managessent 355els and an RCrese
Sutsé ottt § Sy of penonth i the provision for landSil. A sieady
RCRENINE PCIEASE 1 EXDONSEs Per property is
forecast due lo e rate of
penditurg escalaing above e
growth in $he murber of propedies in
the municipality.
Revenue fevel , ) : A steady incsgase in the average rale
Average residential rafe pev $1548 1857 $1713 S7S8 81786 $1837 $1.800 $1.944  per residential assessment is
residendial propary assessmant™ forecast due 1o the rate of
expenditure escalatng above e
growth in ! number of resigential
properties in the muncigality.
Workforce turnover
Realgnations and temminations ' % 1% " 1% 0% 0% 10% W% In201817FY Councll compisted an

comparsd $0 average staff organisational resinucture which
Plerlir ol pamisest 267 aiasions 1 resuited in multipe redundancies.
s B it e ra e Coundil's forecast workforce tumovar
. i anticipated 1o be staady in the
forecast period.

3 *adjustod underlying revenue’ means fotal income other than—

(a) mon-recurment grants usad to fusd capial expanditure; and

b) mon-mongtary assel contrbubions, and

{c) contibutons ¥ fund capial expendiure fram scurces ofher than thoze rederrad to b caragraphs (8) and ()
T 'rate revenue” means revenus fram general rales, municipal charges, senvice rales and service charges
 ‘capital improved value” maans the market value of a property and & measured at e end of the year and includes all valuation adjustments (2.9, supplementary
valuatiors)
 ‘residential property assessments” means the number of residential property assessments af the end of e year and includes all property adusiments (e.g.
new Of deletad assassments)
* ‘residential rate revenue” means revenus from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and sendce chargos kvied on residental properiies
¥ ‘resignations and terminations’ means ak permanent employees (including senior offcars on contract) that lsave $e council and includes resignations,
ferminaSions, retroments and redundancies
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WAMGARATTA RURAL CITY COUNCIL
PERFORMANCE STATEMENT - FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Certification

In my cpinion, e accoampanying Pesformance Statement has been propared in accordancs with the Local Govermen?
Act 1989 and the Loca! Governmen! (Flanaing snd Reporting) Regulstions 2014,

an., Bachelorof Business {Acoouing) Crarieed Accouniant,

Dot ot 005

In our opinion, $he sccompaniying Performance Statement of the Wanganita Rural Gty Counci for the year endged 30
Juma 2018 prasents farly thi resulls of councl's parcrmance i accordance wilh the Local Gevernmen Acf 1959 and e
Local Government (Planning and Reporting; Rugafatons 2014,

The Perormance Statement containg ha rolovant perfonmance indcalors, measuses a0d fesuls in ralation 1 serice
performance, Fnancidl performance and sustanabie capacity

Al e dats of signing, we are not awisre of sy Groumetances that would rendey any particuiars in the Parormance
Statemont 1 be mislesding of Inscourste

Mmmmwummmnmmmmm&w Reguistions 2044 o
this perdormance statement in 28 finad form.
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Independent Auditor’s Report Victorian Auditor- General's Office
To the Counciliors of Wangaratta Rural City Council
Opinion | have audited the accompanying performance statement of Wangaratta Rural

City Council {the council) which comprises the:

description of municipality for the year ended 30 June 2018
sustainable capacity indicators for the year ended 30 June 2018
service performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2018
financial performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2018
other information and

the certification of the performance statement.

(n my opinion, the performance statement of Wangaratta Rural City Council in
respect of the year ended 30 June 2018 presents fairly, in all material respects,
in accordance with the performance reporting requirements of Part 6 of the
Locol Government Act 1989.

Basis for Opinion I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which
incorporates the Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements. | further
describe my responsibilities under that Act and those standards in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the performance stotement section
of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. | and my staff
are independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of
the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of
the performance statement in Victoria and have also fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for my opinion.
Councillors' The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
responsibilities for the  the performance statement in accordance with the performance reporting
performance requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and for such internal control
statement as the Councillors determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair

presentation of the statement of performance that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’s As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion
responsibilities for the  ©n the performance statement based on the audit. My objectives for the audit
audit of the are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the performance
performance statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to
statement fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted In accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagements will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Level 37 /7 35 Collirts Street, Malbowme Vie 3000
T 03 8601 7000 enguinesifoudd. vic gorou  wwwoudd vic gov.oy
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MELBOURNE
26 September 2018

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the decisions of users taken on the basis of this performance
statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagements, | exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit, | also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of performance
statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion, The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the council’s internal control

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
performance statement, including the disclosures, and whether
performance statement represents the underlying events and results in
a manner that achleves fair presentation.

I communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

Tim Loughnan
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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Wangaratta Rural City Council
2017/2018 Financial Report
Comprehensive Income Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018
Note 2018 2017
$'000 $'000

Income
Rates and charges 21 30,738 29,564
Statutory fees and fines 22 1,212 940
User fees 23 7.747 7.7
Grants - operating 24 14743 17,527
Grants - capital 24 5125 4,467
Contributions - monetary 25 143 466
Contributions - non monetary 25 2,561 1,969
Net gain {or loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 26 407 (34)
Share of net profits {or loss) of associates 53 7 {220)
Other income 2.7 1,668 1,691
Found Assets 28 - 715
Total income 64,351 64,862
Expenses
Employee costs 31 22362 23122
Matenials and services 32 17212 16,941
Depreciation and amortisation 33 12,944 14,153
Bad and doubtful debts 34 8 2
Borrowing costs 35 429 929
Other expenses 38 1,531 3,333
Library book revaluation 37 84 -
Total expenses 54,570 58,480
Surplus for the year 9,781 6,382
Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Net asset revaluation increment 52 46,371 97,844
Correction to Land Under Roads assets - (20,485)
Share of other comprehensive income of associates 53 - (8)
Total comprehensive result 56,152 83,733

The above comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Wangaratta Rural City Council
2017/2018 Financial Report
Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2018
Note 2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 41 12,140 7.561
Trade and other recaivables 41 4,064 3,656
Other financial assels 41 19,833 15,673
Inventories 42 1 1
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 51 3,768 m
Investments in asscciaies 53 - 406
Other assels 42 402 279
Total current assets 40,228 28,393
Non-current assets
Trade and ather receivables 41 7 1"
Other financial assets 41 10 10
Property. infrastructure, plant and equipment 52 532,850 468 561
Intangible assets 42 1,684 934
Total non-current assets 534,551 489,566
Total assets 574,779 517,959
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 43 4413 3,909
Trust funds and deposits 43 1,237 1,021
Provisions 45 5,042 5,398
Interest-bearing liabilities 44 552 865
Total current liabilities 11,244 11,193
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 45 15,310 14,140
Interest-bearing liabilities 44 8,185 8,738
Total non-current liabilities 23495 22,878
Total liabilities 34,739 34,071
Net assets 540,040 483,888
Equity
Accumulated surplus 175,550 169,354
Reservas 81 364,490 314,534
Total Equity 540,040 483,888
The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles,
50

Iltem 7.1 Attachment 1

Page 80 of 141



AGENDA — Special Council Meeting 25 October 2018

Wangaratta Rural City Councit
2017/2018 Financial Report
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018
Note Accumulated Revaluation Other
Total Surplus Reserve Reserves
2018 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balanca at begnning of the financial year 483,888 169,354 306,658 7876
Surplus for the year 9,781 9781 - B
Net asset revaluation increment 48371 - 46,371 -
Transfers to other reserves - (6.502) . 6.502
Transfers from other reserves - 2917 - {2.917)
Balance at end of the financial year 540,040 175,550 353,029 11,461
Accumulated Revaluation Other
Total Surplus Reserve Reserves
2017 $°000 $'000 $000 $000
Balance at bagnning of the financial year 400,155 185,272 208814 5.069
Surplus for the year 6,374 6,374 . .
Correction to Land Under Roads assets {20,485) {20,485) -
Nel asset revaluation increment 97 844 - 97,844 -
Transfers to other resarves - (3,364) - 3,364
Transfers from other raserves - 1,557 - (1,557)
Balance at end of the financial year 433,888 169,354 306,658 7876

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

(92
-
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Wangaratta Rural City Council
2017/2018 Financial Report
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018
2018 2017
Inflows/ Inflows!
(Outflows) {Outflows}
Note $'000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges 30,668 29,958
Statutory fees and fines 1,212 939
User charpes 7,383 8,452
Grants - operating 14,743 18,514
Grants - capital 5125 4487
Contributions - monetary 143 456
Interest received 653 489
Resmbursements 179 330
Cther receipis 200 348
Net GST payment {16) 102
Employes costs (22.252) {23,282)
Materials and services (16,968) {18,081}
Trust funds and deposits repaid 216 (34}
Net cash provided by operating activities 21,297 20,689
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (12,296) {9,556}
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant ard equipment 1,030 209
Payments for invesiments {4,160) (6,101}
Net cash used in investing activities (15,426) (15,448)
Cash fiows from financing activities
Finanoa costs (427} (496}
Repayment of borrowings (865) (1.042)
Net cash used in financing activities {1,292) {1,538}
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4579 3,703
Cash and cash equivalents at tha baginning of the financial year 7.561 3858
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 12,140 7,561
Financing arangements 48
Restrictions on cash assets 41

52

The above statement of cash flow shoukd be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles.
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Wangaratta Rural City Council
2017/2018 Financial Report
Statement of Capital Works
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018
Note 2018 2017
§'000 $000
Property
Land improvements 232 208
Total land 22 208
Buidings 370 580
Total buildings 370 580
Total property 602 788
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 2318 1,326
Fixtures, fittings and fumiture % 28
Computers and telecommunications 293 540
At Cailecton 8 5
Library books 178 .
Total plant and equipment 2,824 1,838
Infrastructure
Roads 4,079 4642
Bridges 283 480
Footpaths and cycleways 463 203
Dranage 885 508
Recreationa, leisure and community facilities 1,590 B2
Wasle management 605 73
Parks, open space and streedscapes 9 2
Agrodromes 3 9
Off sireet car parks 465 2
Total infrastructure 8,883 8,870
Total capital works expenditure 12,308 9,557
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 2178 1941
Assat renewal expanditure 7018 6,275
Asset expansion expenditure 2 .
Assat upgrade expendilure 3,088 1,341
Total capital works expenditure 12,308 9,557

The above statement of capital works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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OVERVIEW
Introduction

The Wangaratta Rural City Council was established by an Order of the Governor in Council on 18 November 1994 and is a
body corporate. The Council's main office is located at 62-68 Ovens Street, Wangaratia.

Statement of compliance

These financial statements are a general purpase financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income Statement,
Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Fiows, Statement of Capital Works and Notes
accompanying these financial statements. The general purpose financial report complies with the Australian Accounting
Standards {AAS), other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government
Act 1989, and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014,

Significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of accounting
The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, whereby assets, liabiities,

equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received
or paid.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required 10 be made about the cammying values of assets and liabiities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated judgements are based on professional judgement
derived from historical expenence and various other factors that are believed %o be reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and aiso in future periods that
are affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AAS's that have
significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relate to:

- the fair value of land, buiidings, infrastructure, plant and equipment {refer to Note 5.2)

- the determination of depreciation for buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 5.2)

- the determination of employee provisions (refer to Note 4.5)

- the determination of landfill provisions (refer to Note 4.5)

- other areas requiring judgments

Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where appropriate,
comparative figures have been amended to accord with current presentation, and disclosure has been made of any material
changes to comparatives.
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Note 1 Performance against budget

The performance aganst budget notes compare Council's financial plan, expeassed through is annual budget, with actual
performance. The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Reguiations 2014 requires explanation of any material variances.
Council has adopted a materiality threshoid of the lower of 10 percant or $200,000 where further explanation is warranied.
Explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality threshoid unless the variance is considered to be
material because of its nature.

The budget figures detalied below are those adopted by Council on 26 June 2017. The Budget was based on assumptions that
were relevant at the tme of adoption of the Budget. Counci sets guidelines and parameters for income and expense targets in
this budget in order fo meet Council's planning and financial performance targets for both the short and long-term. The budget
did not reflect any changes to equity resulting from asset revaluations, as their impacts were not considered predictable.

These noles are prepared to meel the requirements of the Local Govemment Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and

Reporting) Reguiations 2014
1.1 Income and expenditure
Budget Actual Variance

2018 018 2018

$'000 $'000 §'000 Ref
Income
Rates and charges 30,548 30,738 190
Statutory fees and fines 1,105 1212 107
User feas 7434 7,747 313 1
Grants - operating 9819 14,743 4924 2
Grants - capital 6.426 5125 (1,301) 3
Contributions - menetary 507 143 (364) 4
Contributions - non monetary - 2,561 2,561 5
Net gain on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and 691 407 (284) 6
equipment
Share of net profits of associates . 7 7
Other income 506 1,668 1,162 7
Total income 57,036 64,351 7315
Expenses
Employee costs 22647 2362 285
Materials and services 16,589 17,212 (623) 8
Bad and doubiful debts . 8 {8)
Depreciation and amortisation 13,993 12944 1,049 9
Borrowing costs 419 a2 (10) 10
Other expenses 93 1,531 (1,439} 1
Total expenses 53,741 54,486 {748)
Surplus for the year 3295 3,865 6,569

55
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Note 1 Performance against budget {cont'd)

1.1 Income and expenditure (cont'd)

(i) Explanation of material variations
Variance ftem Explanation
Ref
1 Userfess User fiees for rental properties is $222K higher than budget and aged
care user fees are $ 130K higher than budgeted
2 Grants - operating Council received 50% of the 2018/19 Financial Assistance Grants

giocation amount in June 2018. The amount recaived was $3.64
million. Aged care funding packages were increased resulting in
additional grants of $1.12 million recalved compared o budget.

3 Granis - capital Grants for capital projects including Aquatics Plan $2.35 million and
Raiway Precinct $1 million defemed to later years, this was offset by
$2 million grant for restoration works on the North Wangaratta
Recreation Reserve.

4 Contributions - monetary Due o the deferral of a portion of Councils 2017/18 capial works
program, condridutions have not been recsived from user groups for
the following projects - $100K Aquatics Plan, $16K Barr Two Oval
Lighting Project, $67K Moyhu Recreation Reserve - Female Friendly
Facility, $25K Appin Park Lightng and $20K Glenrowan Recreation

Reserve Proect.
Conlributions - non monetary Council does not budget for the contribution of non-monatary assals.
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, Higher than budgeted proceeds on sale of plant items of $284K, this
infrastructure, plant and equipment was offset by the deferral of the sale of industrial of $105K.
7 Other income $806K of natural disaster reimbursements was not budge for,

Interest on investments is $247K higher than budget due to carmying
tegher cash amounts and $132K decrease m provision for landfil
ansing from changes in discount rates.

8  Materials and services $281K increase in expenditure in Packaged care due to larger
funding packages received. $1.01 million of natural disaster
emergency and restoration works undertaken that was not budgeted
for,

9 Depreciation and amorfisation Depreciation is less than budgeted due to the revaluation of
Counal's assets at 3062017, The impact fo the revaluation and
change in deprecation rates was not known at the time of adopting
the 2017/18 Budget

10 Bomowing costs Borrowing costs includes $180K in relation to the increase in
provision for landfill rehabiitation arising from changes in discount
rales. The changes in discount rates cannot be budgeted.

11 Other expenses $1.11 million of expenses refating to capital projects bui not of a
capétal nature not budgeted for.

56
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Note1 Performance against budget (cont'd)

1.2 Capital works
Budget Actual Variance

2018 2018 2018

$'000 $000 $000 Ref
Property
Land improvements 3519 232 3287y 1
Total Land 3519 232 (3,287)
Buildings B11 370 (441} 2
Total Buildings 811 370 (441}
Total Property 4,330 602 {3.728)
Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 4154 2319 (1835 3
Fixtures, fittings and furniture - 26 26 4
Cormputers and telecommunications 868 293 (575) 5
Art Collection 5 8 3 8
Library books - 178 178 7
Total Plant and Equipment 5027 2824 (2,203)
Infrastructure
Roads 8,905 4079 (4826) 8
Bridges 574 283 291 9
Footpaths and cycleways 792 483 (329 10
Drainage 2,164 885 (1.279) 1
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 7689 1,590 (6.099) 12
Wasle management a3 805 512 13
Parks, open space and streetscapes 83 9 74y 14
Aercdromes 50 3 @n 15
Off street car parks 887 966 79
Total Infrastructure 21,237 8883 (12.354)
Total Capital Works Expenditure 30,594 12,309 {18,285)
Represented by:
New asse! expenditure 15,276 2176 (13,100)
Assef renewal expenditure 11,236 7019 (4.217)
Assel expansion expenditure 78 28 {50)
Assel upgrade expenditure 4,004 3,086 (918)
Total Capital Works Expenditure 30,594 12,309 (18,285)

W,
~d
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Note 1 Performance against budget {cont'd)

1.2 Capital works (cont'd)

{i) Explanation of material variations
Variance Kem Explanation
Ref

1 Land improvements Implementation of CBD Masterplan projects of $2.95 million
and $337K of Rural Community Planning project deferred to
201819 and later years

2 Buildings Building renewals of $503K deferred to 2018/19,

3 Ptant, machinery and equipment $2.073 milion deferred purchase of organics processing plant,
offsat by $180K carry over of plant purchases from 2016/17.

4 Fixtures, fittings and furniture HACC officas upgrades completad of $22K not budgeted for.

5 Computers and telecommunications Information Services projects of $505K have been deferred to
201819,

6 Ast Collection Additional funding for Art Collection purchases was recaived
during 2017/18.

7 Library books Contributions for lizrary book purchases o Alpine Shire was
not budgeted for as capital expenditure.

8  Roads $3.7 milion Cruse Street, $321K Urban sireet renewal, $270K
Road reconstruction and major patching, $177K preparation
for reseals, $184K Township gravel sealing and $142K gravel
road resheetting deferred to 2018/19.

9 Bridges Bridge Renewal of $233K deferred 10 2018/19.

10 Footpaths and cycleways Bike Path Renewal of $173K deferred to 2018/19.

11 Drainage $483K for Moyhu road and drainage renewal, $82K for

12

13

14

15

58

Recreational, leisure and community faciliies

Waste management
Parks, opan space and streelscapes

Aerodromes

Waldara drainage and $694K for Morgan Street deferred to
2018/19,

$5.95 million for Aquatics Pian implementation, $207K
Glenrowan Recreation Reserve, $166K Moyhu female friendly
facility, 394K for Wareena Hall development, $172K Barr 2
Oval development deferred to 2018/19. This is offset by
restoration works on North Wangaratta Recreation Reserve of
$1.023M that was not budgeted for.

$555K Work on Organics Processing Plant carried over from
1617,

$64K former Yarrunga Pool site redevelopment defemed to
2018/19,

$57K Aerodrome masterplan implementation deferred to
201819
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Note 2 Funding for the delivery of our services 2018 2017
2.1 Rates and charges $'000 §'000
Council uses Capital Improved Valua (CIV) as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipal district. The CIV of &
property is the value of land plus buildings and other improvements.
The valuation base used to calcudate general rates for 2017/18 was $4,995,225,000 (2016/17 $4,919,781,000)
General Rates 11,487 11,084
Rural 5.3% 5,287
Rural residential 4481 4296
Commercialindusirial 3970 3841
Cultural and recreational yl 25
Garbage 2658 2470
Recycling 1415 1,321
Organics 1238 1143
Supplementary rates and rate adjustments m a7
Total rates and charges 30,738 29,564
The date of the latest general revaluasion of land for rating purposes within the municipal district was 1 January 2018, and the
valuation will be first applied in the rating year commencing 1 July 2018,
Annual rates and chargas are recognised as revenues when Council issues annual rates notices. Supplementary rates are
recognised when a valuation and reassassment is completed and a supplementary rates notice issued.
2.2 Statutory fees and fines

Animal Registrations 361 210
Vehicle Crossing 2 29
Health fees 201 164
Infringements and costs 203 235
Land information certificates 2 24
Plarning and building fees 360 237
Election Fines 2 3z
Library Fines 10 9
Total statutory fees and fines 1212 940

Slatutory feas and fines (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the service has been pravided, the

payment is received, or when the penalty has been spplied, whichever first coours.
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Note 2 Funding for the delivery of our services (cont'd)

60

2.3 User fees

Aged and disabiity services
Aercdrome

Building fees

Cemstery

Chidren’s services
Comemunity compliance
Events

Enginesring fees

Extemal private works
Landfill and transfer station charges
Library

Livestock exchange fees
Performing arts and culture
Regional Certification
Rental properties

Tourism

Other

Total user fees

User fees are recognised as revenue when the senvice has been provided or council has othenaise eamed the income.

2.4 Funding from other levels of government

Grants were recaived in respect of the following :

Summary of grants
Commonweslth funded grants
State funded grants

Total grants received

(a) Operating Grants

Recuwyrent - Commonwealth Government

Commurity Support North East - Commorwealth funded programs
Financial Assistance Grants - local roads

Financial Assistance Grants - unallocated

Recuwrent - State Government

Aged and disabilty

Community Support North East - DHS funded programs

Cuiture and recreation
Development
Emergency

Emvironment
Family day care

Library

Matemal and chid health
Youth Services

Other

Total recurrent operating grants

018 2017
$'000 §'000
874 4
7 10
174 128
310 38
1,942 1,025
437 433
3 ]
51 9%
) 2
1,881 1,986
182 165
510 532
460 548
37 40
534 479
kY] 2%
205 %4
7,747 T
14,657 14,133
5211 3,848
19968 2581
5034 1,856
2,356 3418
4652 6475
434 1,327
- 2,187
206 -
110 104
27 53
841 708
24 220
358 318
72 72
91 197
14205 16,033
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2.4 Funding from other levels of government (cont'd)
{a) Operating Grants (cont'd)

Non-recurrent - Commonweaith Government
Community Wellbeing

Non-recurrent - State Government
Cultural development

Age and disability

Emironmental enhancement

Waste

Corporate Services

Economic development

Youth Services

Librasy

Family and children

Community faciies

Envircamenta health

Maternsal and chid haakth

People and Culture

Planning

Regional Forums

Total non-recurrent operating grants

Total operating grants

(b) Capital Grants

Recurrent - Commonweaith Government
Roads to recovery
Total recurrent capital grants

Non-recurrent - Commonweaith Government
Mitchell Ave Park Project
Wangaratta Skate Park Infrastructure Upgrade

2018 207
$'000 §'000
13 2
244 114
102 -
46 183
45 -
38 -
35 85
12 §

2 -

1

€1
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2.4 Funding from other levels of government (cont'd) 2018 2017

{b) Capital Grants (cont'd) $'000 §'000
Non-recurrent - State Government
North Wangaratta Recreation Reserve 2,000 -
Safe pedestrian crossings 107 -
City Oval Tennis Precinct - Stage One Buildings 102 »
Glerrowan Recreation Reserve Project 90 -
Glenvowan Recreation Reserve Kelly Tigers Netball Court 9 -
Qxlay Schoot Carpark sealing 50 -
Bus Shetter Construcion 3 s
Bridge Renewal 24 70
Moyhu Tennis Multiuse Project 9 -
Tennis Cluster Project Lighting 9
Wareena Park Lighting and Pavilion Development 9 -
Kyamba Foundation 2 -
Aquatics Plan - 1,350
Everton Hall and precinct development - 118
Sharad pathway - Tona Road . 100
Tennis Cluster Project Lighting - 8
Appin Park Lighting : L
Famale Friendly Faciity - Moyhu Recreation Reserve . 81
Municipal Synthesic Cricket Pitches - 54
Wangaratta Libeary open space : 4
HACC office upgrades - 25
Footpath Renewal - 20
Bullawah Project - Indigenous Interpregive Signage . 12
Comfoet Station Redevelopment . 10
South Wangaratta Pitch Re-alignment - 10
Informal Recreation Project . 10
Greta Netbal and Umpire Change rooms - §
Children’s Services Playground upgrade . 3
Total non-recurrent capital grants 2547 2%

Total capital grants 5135 T

(c} Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a specific manner

Balance at start of year 1,537 758

Received during the financial year and remamned unspent at balance date 1,568 1,537

Received in prior years and spent during the financial year 564 758

Balance at year end 2519 1537

Grant income is recognised when Council obtains control of he contribution. Control is normally obtained upon receipt {or acquittal)
or upon earker notification that a grant has been securad.

62
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2018 2017
2.5 Contributions $'000 §'000
Monetary 143 466
Non-monetary 2,561 1,969
Total contributions 2,704 2435
Cantributions of non manatary assets were received in relafion o the following asset classes.
Artwork 79 215
Drainage 1,368 176
Paths 169 512
Roads (including Kerbing) 945 1,066
Total non-monetary contributions 2561 1,969

Monetary and non manetary contributions are recognised as revenue when Council obtains control aver the contributed asset.

2.6 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Proceads of sale 1,030 206
Written down value of assets Gisposed (623) (240)
Total net gain/{loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 407 (34)

The profit or ioss on sale of an asset is determined when conrol of the asset has passed 10 the buyer.

2.7 Other income
Interest 653 439
Reimbursements - other 179 n
Reimbursements - Natural disasters 806 795
Recovery of overpayment of superannwation - 59
Insurance recoveries - 49
Other 30 28
Total other income 1,668 1,691

interest is recognised as it is eamed.
Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideradion received or receivable and Is recogrised when Council gains control
over the right to receive the income.

2.8 Found Assets
Bridges - 634
Footpaths and cycleways - 4l
Total Found Assets . 715

63
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Note 3 The cost of delivering services 2018 2017
3.1 Employee costs $'000 §'000
Wages and salanes 17,248 17,554
Annual leave and long senvice leave 2521 2,647
WorkCover 163 326
Superannuation 1928 1,874
Redundancy 215 428
Other 281 293
Total employee costs 22,362 23122
{b) Superannuation
Councii made contributions Lo the following funds:
Defined benefit fund
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund {Vision Super) 95 9
95 96
Employer contributions payable at reporting date R
Accumulation funds
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund {Vision Super) 1,330 1,409
Employer contributions - other funds 503 *%9
1,833 1,778
Employsr contributions payable at reporing date. 181 84

64

Refer fo note B.3 for further information relating 1o Council's superannuation obligations.
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3.2 Materials and services
Other materials and senices 832 B4A3
Plant operating 3,243 3,077
Lewvies and licences 952 972
Community grants and contributions 660 620
Software maintenance 51 ar2
Staff development 204 376
Minor equipment 86 10
Bank charges 78 77
Subscriptions & publcations 160 134
Security 194 103
Legal Expenses 164 174
Packagead care unspant funds transferred 225 14l
Packaged care brokerage 1,276 1,426
Contract payments 5,104 5,050
Utiities 1,068 91
Valuation Contract 123 2
Building maintenanca Vi 50
Consultants 1,034 tal
Consultants - Natural disasters 28 110
Consultants - North Wangaralta Recreation Reserve 40 210
Insurance 412 387
Printing and stationery [} 127
Telephone 248 273
Advertising and promotion 256 247
Postage €3 8
Piant and equipment manlenance " 2
Total materials and services 17.212 16,941
3.3 Depreciation and amortisation
Praperty 1,514 1,556
Plant and equipment 1,918 2,048
Infrastructure 8218 10,549
Total depreciation 12,650 14,153
Intangible assets 264 -
Total depreciation and amortisation 12,944 14,153

Refer fo nofe 4.2( ¢ ) and 5.2 for 8 mare detailed breakdown of deprecialion and amortisation charges and accounting poficy.

€5
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018 2017
3.4 Bad and doubtful debts $'000 $'000
Parking fine debtors 8 2
Total bad and doubtful debts 8 2
Movement in provisions for doubtful debts
Balance at the beginning of the year 119 "7
New Provisions recogrised during the year 8 2
Balance at end of year 127 119

66

Provision for doubtful debl is recognised when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has ocourred. Bad debts are writlen
off when identified.

3.5 Borrowing costs
Interest - Borowings 427 496
Increase in provision for landfll arising from changes in discount rates 2 433
Total borrowing costs 429 929

Borrowing cosls are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except where they are capitalised as part of a
qualifying asset constructed by Council.

3.6 Other expenses
Auditors' remuneration - VAGO - audit of the financial statements, performance statement 4 54
and grant acquiltals
Auditors' remunevation - intemal 76 60
Counciliors” allowances 268 173
Operating lease rentals - -
Assets written-off / impaired - Waste management assats 1,013 1,533
WIP realiocated to expendilure 121
Recognition of additional tandfill provision - closad sites - 1,506
New indusiry rale assistanca 7 7
Total other expenses 1,531 3333
3.7 Library book revaluation
Recognition of Library book revaluation 84
Total library book revaluation 84 -
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Note 4 Our financial position 2018 207
4.1 Financial assets $'000 §'000
{a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 5 5
Cash at bank 1,635 210
Money market at call account 8,500 5320
Term deposits 2,000 2,026
Total cash and cash equivalents 12,140 7,561
(b) Other financial assets
Tarm deposits - currant 19,833 15,673
Municipal Association Purchasing Scheme (MAPS) shares at council valuation 2000. 10 10
Total other financial assets 19,843 15,683
Total financial assets 31,983 23,244
Councits cash and cash equivalents are subject to external restrictions that limit amounts available for discretionary use. These
include:
- Grants (Note 2.4} 2518 1,537
- Trust funds and deposits (Note 4.3) 1237 1,021
Total restricted funds 375 2,558
Totad unrestricted cash and cash eguivaients 8,364 5,003
Intended allocations
Although not extemaily restricted the following amounts have been allocated for specific future purposes by Council:
- reserve furds aliocated for specific future purposes (Note 8.1) 11,460 7875
Total funds subject to intended allocations 11,460 7,875

Cash and cash equivalents inciude cash on hang, deposits at call, and other highly iquid investments with original maturities of 90
days or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts,

Other financial assets are valued at fair value, at balance date. Term deposits are measured at oniginal cost. Any unrealised gains and
losses on holdings at balance date are recognised as either a revanus or expense,
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4.1 Financial assots (cont'd) 2018 2017
(c) Trade and other receivables $'000 §'000
Current
Statutory recewables
Rates and garbage debtors 951 881
Fire services property levy 148 138
Cemetery 28 43
Net GST recaivable 401 385
Parking and animal infringement debiors 423 303
Less prowision for doubtful debits - parking infringements (127} (119)
Interest on rales and garbage receivable and investments 178 68
Non statutory receivables
Natural disaster reimbursements 594 795
Other debiors 1,463 1,168
Loans and advances 1o community organisations 4 4
Total current trade and other receivables 4,064 3,696
Non-current
Non statutory receivables
Loans and advances o community organisations 7 1"
Total non-current irade and other receivables 7 1
Total trade and other receivables 40M 3,707

68

Shert term receivables are camied at involce amount. A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that
an impairment has ooturred. Long term receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rale method.

{a) Ageing of Receivables
The ageing of the Council's trade & other receivables (excluding statutory receivables) that are not impaired was:

Current (not yet due) 996 710
Past due by up o 30 days 210 284
Past due between 31 and 180 days 153 152
Past due between 181 and 355 days 42 21
Past due by mare than 1 year 1 1
Total trade & other receivables 1,463 1,168

{b) Ageing of individually impaired Receivables

At balance date other debtors representing financial assets were past due but not impaired, These amounts refate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing of the Council's trade & other receivables (exciuding
slatutory receivables) was:

The ageing of receivables that have been individually cetermined as impaired at reporting date was:

Current (not yet due) - -
Past due by up to 30 days - -
Past due between 31 and 180 days - 3
Past due between 181 and 365 days 7 12
Past due by more than 1 year 120 104
Total trade & other receivables 127 119
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4.2 Non-financial assets 2018 2017
(a) Inwertories 000 $'000
Inveniones heid for distriteson 1 1
Total mventories 1 1

Inveniories heid for disirituion are measured at cos!, acjusied when appicable for any loss of servics polental. AX other inveniories, inchuding fand held for
s3le, are measwrad al the lower of cost and net realisable vafue. Where inveniories ass acquired for no cost of nominal consideration, they are measured

current regfacement cost at the date of acquisiion.
(b) Other assets

Propayments
Total other assets

(¢} Imtangible assets

Land$# ar spacs
Total intangible assets

Gross carrying amount

Balanoe at 1 July 2017
Oher Addtiors
Balance at 1 July 2018

Accumetated amortisation and impaimment
Batance at 1 July 2017

Amorisation expense

Balance at 1 July 2018

Nt book vakse at 30 June 2017
Nel book vialus at 30 Juns 2018

402 2]
402 e
1084 4
1,684 )
Landfill Total
$000 $'000
1279 1279
%ag 99¢
2273 2213
25 295
204 294
589 589
%64 584
1684 1,684

Intangible assets with finke kves are amoriised as an expense on 3 syslematic basis over the assel’s useful ife. Amorisation is generaly caicuated on a sraight

Ine basis, 8t @ rate that sllocales the asset value, lees any estimated resdual value over its estimated ussful ife. Estmates of he remaining usefd tves and

amarisaton method am reviewed at least anvwally, and adusiments made where approprate
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A

70

Payables

(8) Trade and other paysbles
Materials and conttacts
Employee oosts

Uneamed income

Acorued expenses

Total trade and other payables

(b) Trust funds and deposits

Redension contract depasits
Refundable subdvision securties
Refundable relocate dwelings

Fire Services Property Levy
Wangaratta Perioeming Ants Centre
Ceher

Todal trust funds and deposits

Amounts recaived a6 deposits and retention amounts controled by Councl ae recognised a6 trust funds untl they are retumed, vansferred in accordance with
Ihe purpose of the receipt, or forfeited, Trust funds that are forfeiled, cesuling in councl gaining control of the funcs, ate %0 be recognisad as reverwe af the Ema

of forfeit.

Purpase and nature of fems

Refundable deposits - Deposits are taken by counct a5 a form of surety in @ rumber of droumstances, including in refation to bulkding works, fender deposits,
contract deposits and e use of Cvic facities.
Firs Service Levy - Councd is the collection agent for fire services levy on behal of the State Govermmant. Councl remibs amounts reoeived on 3 quarierly basis,

Notes to the Financial Report

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
2524 228
MO 830
2 515
137 43
4413 399
22 15
A an
3 %
34 ur
178 %
17 3
1,237 1021

Amcunts discosed here wil be remitied 1o the stale overnanent in line with hal process.

Retarfion Amounts - Council has a confractual nght % retain certain amounts unsil a contracior has met certain requirements of a related warrant or defect period
has elapsed. Subject to the salisfaciory completion of the contraciual cbigaticns, of the elapsing of Sme, these amounts will ke paid 10 the relevant contraciar in
Ins with Counci's contrachusl obligations,

Interest-bearing Nabilites
Current
Borrowings - secured
Non-current

Borrowings - secwred
Total

Borrowings are socured by (nsert secunty detais)

{a) The maturhy profle for Councl's bomosings is:

Not laler than one year

Later than one year and not later Ban five years

Later wan five years

Borrowings ae inkialy measured at far vale, baing the cost of the interest baaring labifes, net of wamsaction costs. The measurement basls subsequent %o
inilial recognison depends on whethir the Council has categorised it Nierest-bearing labiiSes as either inancial Fabdifes designated at far value through e
profit and loss, or firancial liabilties at amortised cost. Any difference betwean the iniial recogrised amount and e redempticn valus is recogrised In net result

552 &85
552 %5
s ey
8,183 8737
8737 9602
82 -
1138 1568
/)
8737 9602

over the period of the borrowing using the effectivg interest method,

The ciassficalion depends o the nakure and purpose of the interest bearing kabites. The Councll delermines the ciassfication of s inferest bearing lialilties st
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Notes to the Financial Report

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018
4.5 Provisions
Employee Landfill Totsl
restoration
2018 §°000 $'000 §000
Balance at beginning of the fnancial year 585 13678 19,538
Additional provisions 254 96 380
Amounts used (2818) . [2218)
Change in the discounted amount arising bacause of
time and the efiect of any change in the discount rate . 2 2
Batance al ?e end of he fiancal yeur 58675 14677 20352
o7
Baiance al teginting of the frangal yos' 6468 1113 17581
Additonal provisions 2818 213 s
Amounts used (3570 . {35704
Change in the dacounied amount arising because of
fime and the efiect of any change In e discount rate Fx) a3 516
Balance a e end of the firandial year 5259 13679 19,538
2018 2017
{a) Employee provisions $'000 $'000
Current provisions expecied to be wholly settied within 12 moaths
Redundancy 82 -
Arousi ieave 1963 1743
Long senvice leave 2] 178
Rostered days of 245 243
Time accrued 122 123
2665 2288
Current provisions expected to be wholly settied after 12 morths
Arnual leave N 320
Long seevice leave 246 27380
23m 3110
Total cument employee provisions 542 5398
Non-current
Lorg senios leave &3 461
Tolal non-c.rrent employes peodsions GH (30
Agyregste camying amcunt of empioyes provsions:
Current 542 5356
Non-current 833 461
Total sggregate camying amount of emgloyee provisions 5675 5858

The calrulaton of employes costs and bensfits inchudes 2 relevant on-0osts and e cakculated as follows at reporting date.

Wages and salanes and annua’ iseve
Liabiftes for wages and salaries, includng non-monetary benefits, annual leave and acoumulated sick leave expected 1 be wholly sstied within 12 manths of
the reporing date are recogrised in the provision for employee benefits in respect of employee services up 1o e reporting date, classified as curment lablifies
and measwed at ther nominal valuss.

Liabiities hal are nol expectsd Y be whally sefed within 12 monihs of the repotting dale are recognised in ?e provision for employee benefils as cument
Fabdties, measurad at e present value of he amounts expectad 10 be paid when e lablites are satied using the remureration rate expaciad ¥ apply 3t he
tises of sattiement.

71
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Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018
4.5 Provisions (cont'd)
(3} Employes provisions (cont'd)
Lang senvice ieave

Liabiity for kong servion leave (LSL) is recogrised in $ provision for employee besefits, LSL Is measured at present value. Uncondifonal LSL is disciosed 25 3
current labilty. Conddional LSL that has been accrued, whers an empioyee &8 yet o reach 3 quaifying term of emgloyment, s discicesd 8s a non - current

Fabizy,

2018 2017
Key assumptions: $000 §'000
- disoount rate 265% 261%
- infiation rate 1.50% 150%

Probakikties of staff reaching their entifements are based on managements best estimate and history.

(b) Landfill restoration

Currert - -

Non-cument 14577 13679
14677 13679

Counck Is obligated to restore Bowsar landil 1o 3 partcular standaed.  The forecast Ife of the site is based on curment estimates of remaining capacity and e
forecast rite of infil, The provision for landSk resioration his been calculaled based on the present vakae of the sxpecied cost of works 1o be undertien, The
expecied oost of works has been estimalied based on cument understanding of work required % reinstate the she 1o a sultable standard. Accordingly, the
estimation of the provision reguined is dependant on the accuracy of the forecast timing of e work, work required and related costs.

Key assumplions;
- Index rate 2% 1568%

Anowal discount rates are taken fom the Reserve Bank of Australia Capital Market Yields Government Bonds.

4.6 Financing arrangements
The Courct has the fllowing funding amangements in place as at 30 June 2018,
Bank overdraft 400 400
Cred# card faciites 213 213
Total facities 613 613
Used facillies 21 24
Unused faciites 852 539

72
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Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018

47 Commitmonts
The Council has entered into the fallowing commitments. Commilments are not recogrised in the Baiance Steet. Commitments are disclosed 2t therr nominal
vahee and peesented exclusive of e GST payable.

Laterthan 1 Later than 2
yearand not  years and not
Not later than 1 Iater than 2 lforthan5  Laterthan§
2018 year years years years Total
§'000 $000 $'000 $000 §'000

Operating
Rucyding contract 95 €5 o5 . 2715
Co Store car park licence 414 40 1,296 s T4
Imerest on borrowings m ] a8 &40 2444
Mamagement of poals M7 M7 N . 694
Erwiranmental Mondoring - Bowser Landfil 213 213 213 - 639
HVAC Services maintsrance a7 @ e - m
High Counky Library Neswork - Oparations Conritution 160 160 - - 320
Tolat 2513 2481 3402 8,132 4528
Capital
Road Recarsinueion - Thamson Streat 570 - - 570
Civi Works - Organics Plant 548 - - - 548
North Wangaratta - Recreation Ressrve Redtification 54 - - - 544
Moyhy strestscape and drainage 419 - 419
HP Barr reserve roof 80 - . . 280
Organics Plant Purthase 333 - - - 333
High Country Libeary Network - Back Cortribution 181 181 - 362
Witiams Road Bridge Overtay 3 - - - 173
Various Isolated Kerb & Crannel Renewal 08 - - - 05
Tumer Sireet foctbridgs 8§ - - - 85
Totd 3238 181 - - 3420

Laterthan1  Laterthan 2

yearandnot  years and not

Not Iater than 1 Isterthan2  lsterthan5  Laterthan 5
017 year years years years Total
000 000 000 $000 $000

Operating
Glansowan Hertage Precinct Grant R - . R
Maragement of podis 337 . . . w7
Werkforce planving i - - - %
Gender Equalty Program 5 - - - 5
Indistrial Land Stratugy bl - - 29
Vioknce Agans! Women Campagn 8 - - - 8
Reeer Red Gum Exthbdon 15 - - - 15
Recyding montract 642 642 1508 . a0
Inberest on bomowings 424 37 44 1403 34
Total 1567 1015 2870 1403 6,855
Capital
WISAC Aquatics Pian £ - - . 48
Park Lane Drainage and Parking Upgrade 790 - - - 790
Shared Path Tene Road 1c0 - - - 100
Appin Park Lighting 85 - - - 85
Female Friondy Faciity - Moyhu Rec Reserve 81 - . . 8t
Municipa Synthesc Crcket paches 54 - . - 54
Co Located Community Space at Wangaratia Libeary a7 - - - 47
HACC office upgraces 5 - - - 25
Total 2699 - - - 2,608
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Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018

4.7 Commitments (cont'd)

w1 a7
Operating lease commitments $'00 $000

Al the reporting date, the Councd had the folowing obligations under non-canceliable operating leases for the iease of equipment and land and bulidings for use
within Council's activities {these abligations are nol recognised as liabilties):

Net lader than one year 27 127

Later than ane year and not later than fve years 14 41

Later than fve yoars . .
241 368

Leasa payments for operating leases are required by the accounting standard fo be recognised on a straight lne basis, rather than expensed in the years in
which they are incurred.

Note § Assets we manage
5.1 Non currest assets classified as held for sale
Balance 2t start of year m 1,470
Revauation of assets held for sale - {50)
Less assels dsposed (497} -
Less 3836ts no longer held for ssle . (473}
Assats ransferrad from IPPSE 3,508 130
Total non current assets classified a3 held for sale 3,788 kil

74

Assals held for saf inchude industrial land of $2,398,000 and the old Ovens Coliege site of $1,390.000,

Non-curment assets cassified a3 held for sale (including disposal groups) are measured a1 the fower of Its carmying amount and fair value less costs of disposal,
and are not subject Yo depreciation. Non-current assels, disposal groups and refaled liatilties and assels are treated as current and diassified as held for sale If
i carmying armount will be recoverad $rough 3 sale kansaction rater Ban through continuing use. This conditon i regasded as met only when the sale is
highly peobsble and the 2sset’s sale (or disposal group safe) is expecid tn be completed within 12 months from the date of dassfication.
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Wangaratta Rural City Councif
2017/2018 Financial Report

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018

5.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont'd)

Acquisiion

The purchase method of accouning is used for al acquistions of assets, being the fair value of assets provided as consideration at the date of
acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable to the acquisition. Fair value is the price that would be recsived o sell an assst (or paid 1o transfer a
Tabslity) in an ordery transaction between market parfcipants at the measurement date

Where assats are constructed by Counci, cost indudes all maberials used in construction, direct labour, borrowing costs incumed during construction,
and an appropriate share of directly attnbutable vanable and fixed overheads,

In accondance with Counvil's policy, the threshold limits have applied when recognising assets within an applicabie asset class and unkss othervise
stated are consistent with the prior year

Land under roads

Counil recogrises land under roads it contro’s at fair value.

, salion and .

Buitdings, land improvements, plant and equipment, inkastructure, and other assets having imited usefd lives are systematically deprecialed over
their usefif lives to the Council in & manner which reflects consumption of $he ssrvice potenfial embodied in those assets. Estimatas of remaining
useful fves and residual values are made on a reguiar basis with majr asset dasses reassessed annually. Depreciation rales and methods are

feriewed annually.

Whera assets have sepanate idenfifiable componants that ane subject to regular replacement, thesa components are assignad distinct useful ves
and residual values and 2 separale dapreciation rate is determined for each componant

Road earfrworks are not depreciated on the basis that they are assessad as not having a inited useul life.

Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life a5 determined each year,

Degreciaton pericds used are isled previously and are consistent with the prior year uriess othenaiss staled,

Repavs and mainfenance
Where the repaic relates to the replacement of a companent of an assit and the cost exceeds the capitaisation threshoid hie cost is capitaised and
depreciated. The camying vakue of the replaced asset is expersed.

Vialuation of fand and buiidings

Valuation of land (excluding land under roads) and duidings was undertaken in 2017 by a qualifed independent valuer - Visipac Pty Lid. The
valuation of land and buldings is at far value, being market value based on highest and bast use panmitted by relevant land planning provisions.
Vihere tand use is restricied through existing planning provisions the valuation is reduced to reflect this limitation. This adustment is an
unobservabie inpaut in the vaiation. The adpstment has no impact on the comprehensive income statement

Speciaised land is vaiued at fair value using site values adjusted for anglabo (undeveioped andior unserviced) characteristics, acoess rights and
private interests of other parties and entitlements of infrasinucture assets and senices. This adustment is an unobsendable input in the valuation
The adjusiment has no impact on the comprehensive ncome stalement.

Any sonificant movements in $he uncbservable inputs for tand and fand under roads will have a signficant impact on the fair value of these assels,

The date of the current vaksation is desaled in the following table.

80

Iltem 7.1 Attachment 1 Page 110 of 141



AGENDA — Special Council Meeting 25 October 2018

Wangaratfa Rural City Council
2017/2018 Financial Report

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018
5.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont'd)

Detais of the Counci's land and buildings and information about the fair vakue hierarchy as at 30 June 2018 are as follows:

Lovel 1 Leovel 2 Lovel3  Date of Valuation

Noe-specialised tand . 3710 %78 AT
Specinisad land - - 22884 17

Land improvernents . . 6171 a7
Heritage Buikdngs . - 415 ani7
Non-speciaised buiings . . 32481 Je7

Total - 3710 83,673
Valuation of infrastructure

Vahuation of infrastructure assets Roads, Bridges, Drainage, Footpaths and Cydeways was underiaken in 2018, The values wers determined in
accordance wih a valuation undertaken by Nicole O'Keefe - Asset Engineer. The valuation was performead based on the deprecated replacement
cost of the assets,

The date of the cument vakuation is detailed in the following tabie.

The vakuation is ak far vaive hased on repiacement cost Bss accumulaled deprecialon as at the cate of vaiuaion
Detais of the Counci's infrasinuchure and information about the fair value Merarchy as at 30 June 2018 are as kilows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level3  Date of Valuation

Roads . - 2199 May-18
Bridges - - 66,497 May-18
Footpaths and cyceways . . 15422 May-18
Drainage . - 36948 May-18
Recreational, keisure and communty faciities . . 18,074 17
Waste management - - 1.509 Jun-17
Parks, open space and sireetscapes - - 1630 Jun17
Aerodromes - . s72 An-17
Off sireet carparks - - 253 17
Total . - 424,164

5.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont'd)
Description of significant unobservable inputs into fevel 3 valustions

Non specialised fand, specialised fand and land under roads is valued using a market based direct companson techrigue. Significant
unobsarnvatin inputs inclkude the extert and impact of res¥iction of use and the market cost of land per square metre, The exient and imgact of
restricions on Use vanes and resuls in & reduction to surounding land values between 5% and 95%. The maret value of land varies significanty
depending on the location of the land and the cument market conditions. Currendy land values range batween $2 and $210 per squase metre.

Non specialised buildings and Specialised buildings are valued using a deprecialed replacement cost techrique. Significant uncbservable
inputs include the cument repiacement cost and remaining usedul lives of buldings. Cument replacemant costs is calculated on a square metre basis
and ranges from $75 to $4,500 per square metre. The remaining useful lives of buldings are determined on the basis of the cument condiion of
bulkings and vary from 10 years to 100 years. Replacement cost s sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease In cost
flowing through to the vakustion. Useful ees of buikdings are sensifive to changes in expectations or requirements that could either shorten or exterd
the usefd lives of budings.

Infrastructure assets sre valued hased on the dapreciated replacament cost.  Significant unobservable inputs induds e cumeant repiacement cast
and remaining useful bves of infrastructure. The remaining uselul Iives of infrastruciure assets are determined on the basis of the current condiion of
the asset and vary from 10 years to 200 years, Replacement cost is sensitive 1o changes in market condifions, with any increase or decrease in cost
flowing through to the valuation. Useful ives of infrastructure are sensiive to changes in use, expectalions or reguirements that could either shorten
or extend the usefid lives of infrastructure assets.

2018 07
Reconciliation of specialised land $'000

§'000
Land under roads 23684 23884
Total specialised land 23,884 23,834
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2018 2017
5.3 Investments in associates §'000 $'000
(a) Investments in associates
Investments in assodiates accounted for by the equity method are:
- High Country Library Corporation . 406
High Country Library Corporation
Background
High Country Library Corporation was established on the 8th August, 1996. The
Wangaratta Rural City Counal's share of audited assets and hiabiliies committed fo
this Corporation was 43%. They were incuded in the balance sheet as a current
investment on the basis that the High Coundry Library Corporation was voluntarily
wound up and the assets and fabilities were distibuted during the year ended 30
Jure 2018
Fair value of Councli's investment in High Country Library Corporation . 406
Council's share of accumulated surplus
Councils share of accumulated surplus at start of year 181 381
Impairment lossas recogrised in operating result 7 (220)
Distributions received {188} -
Council's share of accumulated surplus at end of year - 161
Council's share of reserves
Councif's share of reserves at star of year - 8
Transfars {10) from reserves - {8)
Council's share of reserves at end of year . -
Movement in carrying value of specific investment
Carrying value of investment at start of year 4«06 634
Share of impairment losses recognised in operating result 7 (220)
Share of asset revaluation - 8
Distributions received {413} .
Carying value of investment at end of year - 408
Significant restrictions

Council has no share in commigments for the High Country Library Corporation &s the Wangaratta
branch is now managed in-house

Associates are all entities over which Coundil has significant influence but nat condrol or joint control. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recogrésed at cost.

Invesiments in jont amangements are classified as esher joint operations or joint veritures depending on the contractual rights and
obligations each inveslor has, rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement.

For joint operasions, Council recognises ils direct right to, and s share of jointly held assets, iabilities, revenues and expenses of joint
oparations.

Interests in joind ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under this method, the interests are initially recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost and adjusted heneafer o recogrise Council's share of the post-acouision profits or losses and
movements in other comprabensive incoma in profit o loss and other comprehansive income respactively.
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2018 2017
Note 6 People and relationships No. No.
6.1 Council and key management remuneration

(2) Related Parties
Parent antity
Wangaratta Rural City Coundil is the parent antity.

Subsidkaries and Associades
Interests in subsidianies and associates are detaded in Note 5.3,

(b) Key Management Personne!
Detals of persons holding the position of Councilior or other members of key management personnal at any time during the year are:
Councillors Ken Clarke OAM (Mayor)

Harvey Benton

Mark Currie

David Fuler

Dean Rees

Harry Bussell

Ruth Amery 0107/2017 - 08/10/2017

Ashiee Fiizpatnck 13112017 - 30/06/2018

Total Number of AdministratorsiCouncillors
Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel
Total Key Management Personnel

(¢} Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

Total remuneration of key managament personnel was as follows:

Short-term benefits 277 3,132
Post-employment benefits 219 305
Long-term bensfits 38 .
Termination benedts 82 247
Total 3,065 3,684

The numbers of key management personnel whase total remuneration from Councd and any
related entities, fall within the foliowing bands

$1-$9,969

$10,000 - $19,999

$20,000 - $29,999

$30,000 - $39.999

$40,000 - 549,999

$70,000-§79.999

$90,000 - $33,000

$100,000 - $100,969

$110,000 - $119,969

$120,000 - $129.999

$130,000 - $139,969

$140,000 - §149.9%9

$150,000 - $159,9%9

$160,000 - $169,95¢ . 1
$170,000 - $179,909 . 2
$180,000 - $189,90 . -
$190,000 - §199,909 1 2
$200,000 - $209,999 2 -
$210,000 - $219,9%9 1 -
$270,000 - §273,9%9 . 1
$260,000 - $299,959 1

8N o
88 3
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6.1 Council and key management romuneration (cont'd)

(d) Senlor Officer Remuneration
Al senior officers are included in Key Management Personal

6.2 Relatod party disclosure
{2} Transactions with related parties

During the pericd Council entered info the following transactions with related parties.

1. Empicyse expenses for closs famiy members of key management persornel $85,.954 (2016/17 $83,062)

2. Contributions paid to the Wangaratta Festival of Jazz. $60,500 (2016/17 §77,000).

3. Centribuions paid to Tourism North East $130,052 {2016/17 $159,924).

4, Contribulions and fees paid 10 LG Pro $4,450 (2016/17 $33,800)

5. Contribuions and fees paid to North East and Resourca Recovery Group $32,520 (2018/17 $Ni).

8. Contribusions and fees paid to Alpine Shire $353,357 (2016/17 SNil). A key management person has a family member in a key
managemant paskion.

Al purchases were at ams langth and were in the normal course of Councl's operations. Where not stated a key management person was a
board member as a result of their position at Council,

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties
Thera are no balances outstanding al the end of the reparing period in ralation % transactions with related parties.

No expense has been recognised in the current year or prior year for bad or doubtfl debts in respect of amounts owed by related pariies.

(c) Loans tofrom related parties
Counci does not make loans to or receive kans from relaled parties. No guaraniees have baen provided.

(d) Commitments to/from related parties
Counci has no outstanding commitments ta'from athes related parties.
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Note 7 Managing uncertainties
7.1 Contingent assets and liabllities
(a) Contingent assets

Council does not hawe contingent assets 1o disciose at 30 June 2018 (2017 Nd).

Operating lease receivabies
The Coundil has entared into commercial proparty leases on its investment property, consisting of surplus freehold office complexes. These

propesties heid under cperating leases have remaining non-canceliable lease terms of betwesn 1 and 10 years, All isases nciude a CPI based
ravizion of the rental charge annually.

Future inimum rentals receivable undar non-cancellable cperating leases are as follows:

2018 07
§'000 $'000
Not later than one year 456 233
Later than one year and not later than five yeers 1528 185
Later than five years 672 177
2,656 600
{b) Contingent liabilities
Superannuation

Council has obligations under a defined banedt suparannuation scheme that may result in the need to make addiional contributions to the
scheme, matiers relating to this potensal oblgaton are cutined below, As 3 result of the volatiity in financial markets the likelihood of making
such coatributions in future perods exists.

Future superannuation contributions

There were no contributions outstanding and no loans issued from or to the above schemes as at 30 June 2018. The expacied contributions o
be paid to the Defined Benefit categary of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2019 are $111,035

Other

In May 2016, Council resiriched access 1o the North Wangaratta Recreation Reserve foliowing advice kom DHHS and Erwironment Protection
Authority Victoria that pallution in the form of iead and other cortaminants had boen detected at the site. The Environment Protection Authority
(EPA) has isswed a Poilution Abatement Notioz and Clean-Up Notic 1o the Wangaratia Clay Target Club Incorporated in respect of lead
polution and complex hydrocarbon paliution at the North Wangaratta Recreation Reserve site. Council was akso served with a Clean-up Nolice
On 23 Apri 2018 EPA revoked she Ciean-Up Notice previously issued to Coundil and is “satisfied that compliance with all notics requirements
has been achigved®. On the is basis no contingent liabiity is Mought 10 exist at 30 June 2018 for the North Wangaratta Recreation Reserve kead
poilution matier.

On 22 August 2018 Counci made employae back payments totaling $510,280 in relation fo Enterprise Agreement arrangements. The
Entarprise Agreement had been under review with Fair Work Ausyaila at 30 Juns 2018 and amounts payable were not known undil approval had

been granied on 1 Augst 2018,
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7.1 Contingent assets and liabilities (cont'd)

Landfill

Council operates a landfil. Councl will have to caery out site rehabilitation works in the fulure. At balance date Council i unable to acourately
assess the financial implications of such works.

Contingent assets and contingent iiabiities are not recognised in the Batance Shest, but are discicsed and if quantifiable, are measured at
nominal vakse. Contingant assets and Satilities are presented indlusive of GST receivable or payabie, respactivedy.

(c) Guarantees for loans to other entities
Council has AS $5,000 bank guaraniee with Dept. of Natural Rescurces & Energy.

Financial quaranbee conracts are not recognised as 3 Tability in the bafance shest unless the fender has exercised their right % call on the
guarantee or Council has other reasons to balieve that it is probable that the right wil be exercised.

72 Change in accounting standards
The fdlowing new AAS's have been issuad that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2018 reporting period. Council has assessed these pending
stardards and has identified he following polensal impacts wil fow from the application of these standards in kuture reporting pencds.

Financial instruments - Disclosures (AASE 7) {applles 2018'19)

This Standard requires erfities b0 provide disclosures in their financial statements Bt enatie users fo evalate: (3) the signicance of inancial
instruments for the entity’s financial position and performance; and (b) the nature and extent of risks arising from financil instruments %o which the
entity is exposed.

Financial instruments (AASE 9) {appbes 2016/16)

The key changes include the smplified requirements for the classification and measurement of financial 23sets, 3 new hedging acoounsing mode! and a
rerdsed impaimment loss moded to recognise impairment losses aarier, as opposed to the cument appraach that recognises impairment onfy when
incurred.

Revenus from condracts with customers (AASB 15) (appies 201920 for LG sector)

The standard shifts the focus from the trarsaction-level to a contract-based approach. Recognition i determined based on what the customer
expects 1 be entitied to (rghts and cbligations}. while measurement encompasses estimation by the ently of the amount expected 1o be entitied
for pesforming undiee the contract. The full impact of $his standard is not knoan however £ is most likely 10 impact where contracts extend over
time, where tera ara rights and obligations that may vary the timing or amount of the consideration, or where there are mulfiple performancs
elements. This has the potertial to impact on the recogniion of certain grant income,

Amendmants to Austration Acoounting Standards - Deforral of AASB 15 for Nod-for-Profit Entilies (AASB 2016-7) (apyies 201920)
Tris Standard defers the mandatory eflective date of AASB 15 for not-for-peofit enfiies fom 1 January 2018 to 1 January 2019,

Leases (AASB 16) (appiies 2014°20)

The classification of leases as either Srance leases or operaling jeases is eimiraled for lessees. Leases will De recogrised in the Balance
Sheet by capialising the present value of the minimum lease payments and showing a ight-of-use’ asset, while future lease payments wil be
recognised 85 a financial ladiity, The nature of the expense recognised in the profit or loss will change, Rather than being shon as rent, o¢ as
leasing costs, it will be recognised as depreciation on the Tight-of-use’ asset, and an interest charge on the lease liabilty. The interest charge
wil be calculated using the effective interest method, which will result in a gradual reduction of inlerest expense over the lease tem,

Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (AASE 1058 | (appkes 201%20}

This standard replaces AASE 1004 Contributions and establishes revenue necogniion principles for transactions whare the consideration to acquire an
asset Is signficantly iess than fair value 10 enable to not-for-proft entity 1o further #s objectives.
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7.3 Financial instruments
(a) Objectives and policies
The Council's principal financial instruments comprise cash assets, %em deposits, receivables (exciuding statutory recaivables), payables
(exchuding statufiory payables) and bank borrowings. Detals of the significant accounting policies and medheds adopled, inciuding the criteria for
recogniticn, the basis of measurement and the biasis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each dass of firancial asset,
financial kabiity ard equity instrument is disciosed in the Notes of the fnancial statements. Risk management is camied out by senicr
management under poficies appeoved by the Council, These palicies include identification and anaysis of the risk exposurs o Coundl and

(b) Market risk

Markat risk is the risk that the fair vaise or fuluee cash fiows of coundd financial instruments wil Nuctuate because of changes in market prices,
The Council's exposure to market risk is primarily through interest rasa risk with only insignificant exposure to other price risks and no exposura
to fareign currency risk

Interest rate risk

Inferest rade risk reSers to the risk that the vaiue of a francial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrument will fuctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. Councls interest rate liability risk arises primarily from long tarm loans and borrowings at fixed rates which
exposes council 10 fair value interest rae sk, Cash Now interest rate sk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument wil
fluctuate because of changes in market inderest rates. Councl has minimal axposure to cash flow interest rate risk through its cash and deposits
that are at ficating rates.

Investiment of surplus funds is mada with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Act 1989 . Councl manages intarest rate
risk by adoping an investment policy hat ensures.

- diversification of investiment product;

- monitoring of retum on investment; and

~ benchmarking of returns and comparison with budget

There has been no significant change in the Counci's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing interest rate risk or the
methods used 1o measure this sk fram the previaus repering period.

Intsrest rate movemants have not been suficiently significant during the year to haws an impact on the Counci's year end result.

(c) Credit risk
Credi risk Is the risk that a conlracting ensty wil not complete its chligations under a financial instrument and cause Council %o maike a financial
loss. Council have exposure % credit risk on some financial assets inchided in $ie balance sheet. To help manage this risk

- council have a palicy for estabishing credit fmits for the entities Council deal wih;

- council may require collateral wheee appropriate; and

- council only #rvest surplus funds with financial insttutions which have a recognised credit rating spaciied in councifs ivestment pobcy.
Raceivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across the ratapayer, business and govemment sectors. Credit risk associated with
the Counci's fnancial assets 5 minimal bacause the man deblr is secured by a charge over the rabsable property,

There are no material financial assets which are individualy dedemined to be impaired.

Courcil may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are nct included in the balance sheet, such as when Counci provide a
guaranies for another party. Details of our contingent liabitties are disclosed in Note 7.1{b}

The maxinum exposure 1o credit risk at the reporting date 1o recogrased financial assets is e carrying amount, net of any peovisions for
impainment of thosa assets, as disclosad in the balance sheat and noles 10 the financial statements. Councll does not hod any callateral,
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7.3 Financial instruments {cont'd)
(d) Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk inchudes the risk that, 23 a result of counci's operational dquidity requirements it will nct hava suficent funds 1o settie 2 ransaction when
regured or wil be forced o sed a financial asset 8t below vakue or may be wnable to setiie or recover 3 financial asset.
To help reduce these risks Council:
- have & liquidly poficy which targets a misimum and average kel of cash and cash equivalents Yo be maintained;
- have readily acosssibie standy faclies and other funding arrangaments in place;
- hirve 2 liguidity portiolio structure that reguines surplus Sands to be invested within various bands of higuid instrements;
- monitor budge! 10 achua performancs on a regulsr basis; and
= 3ot limits o1 borrowings mialing %o $he percentage of ioans 1o rate revenue and percontage of loan principal repayments %o rate revenue.

The Council's maximum exposure fo bquidty nsk is the camying amounts of financial habiities as dsclosed on $e fa0o of the balance sheet and the
amounls related 10 firancial guaraniess cisclosed in Note 7.1(c), and is deemed insigrificant based an prior pericds’ data and current assessment of rigk,

Theea has been no signficant changs in Coundil's exposura, o &5 objectives, polcies and processes for managing quidity risk of the methods used o
measwre this sk fom the previous reporting penod,

With the axception of borrowings, al firanciat labilties are expectad 1o be settied within normal seems of trade. Dedails of the maturiy profile for borrowings
are disclosed ot Note 4.4,

Unless olherwse stated, Bie carryirg amounts of finencial instruments reflect their fair value.

(¢) Sensitivity disclosure analysis

Taking into account past performance, future expactatons, economic forecasts, and managemant's knowedge and exparience of the financial markets,
Councl botaves the following movements are Teasonably possible’ over the next 12 months:

- A paradel shift of + 1% and -1% In market imerest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 1.50%.

These movernsnts will not have a material impact on the valuation of Councils financial assets and labilties, nov wil ey have 8 material impact on the
rasults of Councl's operations.

7.4 Fair value measurement
Farr vaiue hisrarchy
Counci's financial assets and labiities are not valued in accordance with $e fair value Nerarchy , Councils financial assels and listélities ace moasred at
amortised cosl.

Councl measures certan assets and kabilties at fair vakee where required o parmitied by Australian Acoounting Standards. AASB 13 Fair vake

t, sims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a defintion of fair vaiue and a single sowrce of far value measurement and
disciosure requirements for use 2c1oss Ausiralian Accounting Standards,
AASE 13 defines fr value a5 the price that would be received to sell an asset or pad to transfer 3 Kabiity in an orderly transaction betwesn market
paricpants at the measwrement dale. Fair value under AASE 13 is an exil prics regardless of whether that price is Grectly cbservable of estimaled using
another valustion tachnique.
Al assets and Eabiites for wiich far value is measured or disdosed in the financial stalements are calegorised within a far value hierarchy, described as
foilows, based on the lowest level input that is signifcant 10 the fair valie measurement s a8 whole

Level 1 — Queted (unadusled) market prices in actve markets for identical 2asets or kabies

Level 2 — Valuation tachniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value messurement is drectly or indirectly cbservable; and
Lewel 3 — Valugbon techniques for which the lowest level input that s significant to the fair valus measurement is unabservable.

For the purpose of fair vake dischosures, Council has determined ciasses of assels and labiies on the basis of the nature, characteristes and risks of e
assat or habiity and tha level of the fair value herarchy a8 explained above.

In addifion, Cowncil determines whether ¥ansters have octurred between levels in e Nerarchy by re-assessing categorsation (based on B lowes! level
input !hat is sgnificant to the fair value measurement 23 a whole) at the end of each repocting peciod.
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7.4 Fakr value measurement (cont’d)
Revaluation
Subsaquent to e inital recogniion of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment, are measured at their fair value, baing the prce
that woudd be received to sell an asset (or paid o iransfur a labdity) in an orderty ransaction between market participants at the maasurernent date. A
batanca date, the Council reviewed the carrying value of the indiidial classes of assets measured 31 fair vaiue to ensure hat cach asset matecially
approximated ds fak vaiue. Where the camying vaks materally diflerad from the fair value at balance date, the class of assel was revalusd.

Fair value valuations are determingd in accordance with 8 valuation hisrarchy. Changas to the valuation hisrarchy wil anfy oocur if an extamal charge in
the restrictions or imitations of use of an asset result in changes o the permissible or practical ighest and best use of the asset. In addsion, Councl
undertakes a formal revakaation of kand, bulldings, and infrasinucture assels on o reguiar basis ranging from 1 1o 3 years. The valuation i perfarmed eifher
by experienced council officers of independent experts.

Where he assels are revaked, the revaluation ncrements are credited directly 10 the asset revaluabion reserve xcept 10 the exient thal an increment
reverses a prior year decrament for that class of asset that had been recognised as an expense in which case the Increment s recognised as revenue up fo
the amount of the expense. Revaluation decrements are recognised as an expense escep! whare pror increments are included in the assat revaluation
reserve for ihat cass of asset in which case the decrement is laken 10 the reserve: i the extent of the remaining increments, Within the same class of
assats, revaluation incraments and decrements within the year are offsel.

Impsirment of sesals

At each reporing dats, the Councl reviews e camying vahee of its 8ssels fo datermine whether there is any indication that these assets have been
Impaired. if such an indication exists, the recoverable amount o the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value In use,
is compared to $he assets camying value, Any excess of the assets carmying value over its recoverable amount is expensed o the comprehensive income
stalement, unbess e assel is cartied at the revalued amount i which case, the impairment oss is recognised deectly agains! the revakasion surplus in
respect of the same class of assel to the extent thal 1he impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revalualion surplus for that same dass of asset.

7.5 Events occurring after balance date
On 1 Awgust 2018, the operations of the Sakyards was 13ken over by Wangaratta Livestock Exchange Pty Lid (WLE). WLE Is a company registered
under the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) and is wholly owned by Counck. Councl has resolved 1o implement a commercial management framework for the
Saleyards under which Counal appaints WLE %o provide agreed Management Services 10 Counci in respect of the Saleyards.
Plant and equipment required for the operaion of the Saleyards has been transferred 1o WLE.
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Balance at
beginning of Increment  Balance at end of
8.1 Reserves reporting period (docroment)  reparting paricd
{2) Asset revaluation reserves $000 5000 $'000
2018
Property
Land & kand improvements 24.9% 24 938
Buidings 213 2131
27 ea7 21,067
Plant & Equipment
Art Collection 23 238
] 238
Infrastructure
Roads 199.241 521 238,768
Bridges 53872 1313 55,185
Footpaths and cycleways 4004 500 4800
Deainage 1850 6,481 24.78%
Recreationsl, leisure and community faciises 125 - 125
Parks, open space and sveelscapes 2,35 . 2,365
Offsireet car parks 1437 451 1,888
279,352 46,371 325,723
Total asset revaluation reserves 306,658 46,371 353,029
2017
Property
Land & land improvements 23674 1,262 24,936
Buidirgs 4,571 (2,440} 2,131
28245 (1,178} 27,067
Plant & Equipment
At Caflection 23 - 239
23 234
Infrastructure
Roads 132450 56,781 199,241
Bridgas 27058 26,813 53,872
Footpathe and cycleways 3an 634 4,004
Drainage 11,038 7272 18,308
Recreatianal, leisure and community faciises - 125 125
Waste managentent 4032 (4,032} -
Parks, open space and sreelscapes 2.%5 - 2,368
Asrcdromes 3 3 -
Offstroe! cir parks 1 1426 1437
180,330 99,022 279,352
Total asset revaluation reserves 208,814 97,544 306,658
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Batance at Transfer from Transfor to
beginning of accumulated accumulated  Balance at end of
reporting period surplus surplus  reporting period
$7000 $'000 $'000 $000
{b) Other reserves
2018
Cemetery 17 4 - 61
Loans Lx] - - 80
Developers’ conrbations 243 . {143) 100
Developers' contribution for recreation 158 {142) 16
CSNE integration 135 - 135
HACC 147 . - 147
Industrial land . 337 - 7
Parforming arts centre 2 1 - 3
Replacament of plant 255 2,10 {1,963) 26592
Repiacement of plant - CSNE 4 . - 4
Regional playground 1 - - 1
Waste and Landfill 3044 2793 {688) 5188
Livestock seiling complex - 90 - 0
Unfunded superannuation 478 66 - 544
Municipal Fire & Emergency Mgt Resowrcing 147 16 - 163
North Wangasatta Recreation Reserve - g1 - ar
Wangaratta Showgrounds . 33 k]
WISAC 108 24 - 150
Total Other reserves 7875 6,502 12917) 1,460
2017
Cemetery 2 15 - 17
Loans 4 285 - <)
Developers' contributions 21 2 - 243
Developers’ contribution for recreation 174 47 {63) 1%
CSNE integration 135 - - 138
HACC 183 - any 147
Parforming aris centre 18 2 {18) 2
Replacement of plant 1,730 1,680 (856) 2554
Replacement of plant - CSNE 4 . . B
Reglonad playground 1 . . 1
Waste and Lanati 2464 1,113 (533) 3044
Unfunded supetannuation 351 127 - 478
Municige! Fire & Emergency Mgl Resourcing 182 - {35) "
WISAC A4 73 {1) 106
Total Other raserves 6,068 3,364 {1,557) 7875

The reserves for developers contribetions wil, upon compietion of developments, be utiised o develop recrestion and other faciibes for

reskients in the respectve development areas.

The Waste and Landfll resarve s for Suture capital works and rehablitation of landfil shes.

Replacement of plant reserve is for purchase of plant and equipment per the plant replacament program.
Loans reserve is 10 cover the future prncipal repeyments of interest only lcan via the Local Govemment Funding Vehcls.

Unfunded suparannuation reserve s for possibie fulure defined benefits superannuation calls.

The Munkcipal Fire & Emeegency Mgt Resourcing reserve s for ongoing fre and emergency management resourcing from State

Government funding.

The reserve %or the Noeth Wangaralla Recrealion Reseeve & the unspent funds from $2 milion grant funding réceived o date fom the
federal government for remediation 8s a result of lead contamination.
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2018 2017
8.2 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus/(deficit) $'000 $'000
Surplus for the year 9,781 6,382
Depreciation and amortisation 12,944 15,686
Profit/{loss) on disposal of property, infrasiructure, plant and equipment (445) 34
Finance cosls 427 496
Fair value decreases - Employee provisions - 83
Fair value decreases - Rehabilitation provisions 2 433
Contributions - Non-monetary assets (2.561) (1,969)
Found Assets - {715)
Share of High Country Library Corporation (surplus)/deficit M 220
Bad Dabls 8 2
Assels written-off / impared 1,097 -
Change in assefs and liabifities:
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (384) (169)
(Increase)idecrease in prepayments (123) 86
Increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables 504 (691)
(Decrease)increase in other liabdities 216 (34)
(Increase)/decrease in inventones . 32
Increasei{decrease) in provisions 814 813
{Increase)idecraase in intangible asset {996) -
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 21297 20,689
8.3 Superannuation

Council makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Local Authorities
Superannuation Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation and defined benefit, each of
which s funded differently. Obligations for contributicns to the Fund are recognised as an expense in the Comprehensive
Income Statement when they are made or due.

Accumulation

The Fund's accumudation categories, Vision MySuper/Vision Super Saver, receive both employer and employee contributions
on a progressive basis. Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee eamings (for the year
ended 30 June 2018, this was 9.5% as required under Superannuation Guarantee legislation).

Defined Benefit

Council does not use defined benefit accounting for s defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Bensafit category.
This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit categery is a pooled multi-employer sponsared plan.

There is no proportional spiit of the defined benefit liabiliies, assets or costs between the parlicipating employers as the

defined benefit obligation is a ficating cbligation between the participating employers and the onfy time that the aggregale
obligation is allocated to specific employers is when a call s made. As a result, the level of parficipation of Counci in the
Fund cannot be measured as a percentage compared with other participating employers. Therefore, the Fund Actuary is
unable o afocate benefit liabities, assets and cosls between employers for the purposes of AASB 119,
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Wangaratta Rural City Council
2017/2018 Financial Report
Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018
8.3 Superannuation (cont'd)

Funding arrangements

Council makes employer contributions 1o the Defined Benefit category of the Fund at rates determined by the Trustee ca the

advice of the Fund Actuary.

As al 30 June 2018, a full thennial actuarial investigation was completed. The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined
Benefit category of which Council is a contributing employer was 106%. To determine the VBI, the Fund Actuary used the
following long-term assumptions:

Net investment returns 6.0% pa
Salary information 3.5% pa
Price inflation (CP1) 2.0% pa.

Vision Super has advised that the actual VBI at 20 June 2018 was 106.0%.

The VBI is 10 be used as the primary funding indicator. Bacause the VBI was above 100%, the 30 June 2018 actuarial
investigation determined the Defined Benefit calagory was in a satisfactory financial position and that ne change was
necessary 1o the Defined Benefit category’s funding arrangements from prior years.

Employer contributions

The VB surpius means that the market value of the fund's assels supporting the defined benefit obiigabions exceed the
vesied benefits that the defined benefit members would have been entitied to if they had alf exited on 30 June 2017. Council
was nofified of the 30 June 2018 VBI during August 2018,

2018 interim actuarial investigation
An interim actuarial investigation will be conducted for the Fund's position as at 30 June 2018. It is anticipated that this
actuarial investigation will be completed in December 2018.
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Wangaratta Rural City Council
201712018 Financial Report

Certification of the Financial Statements

in my cpinion the accompanying feancial stalements have teon prepared I acocrdance Wit e Loce! Goverament Act 1089, the Local
Gowermant [Plarning and Reportingl Reguiations 2014, Australian Accounting Standands and other mandsory peofessionsl reporting
qtements

Xl
Fothea B BusiAce). CA
Principal Accounting Officer

Oate : 1 S Soplember 2018

Wasgaratta

In out opinicn e accompanying firancial statoments prasant laidy the Saancial ransactions of Wangarsita Rutsl Clty Councl for the year snded 30
Jute 2018 and B fnancial posiion of the Councll as af that dale.

As at the date of signing, we are not awwre of any croumstarces which would render any partcufsns in the fmancinl staterments b be misieading o
[naccurate.

We have been suthonsed by e Councl and by Bhe Locel Govommen! (Planning and Reparting) Regulaions 2014 1o cenify the financial
statemants i thee Snal foren.

(b

ome: A4S Soptember 2018
Warguesta r

S—
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Independent Auditor’s Report Victorion Avditor- Generol's Office

To the Councillors of Wangaratta Rural City Council

Opinion

Basis for

Councillors”
for the

report

I have audited the financial report of Wangaratta Rural City Council (the council) which
comprises the:

balance sheet as at 30 June 2018

comprehensive income statement for the year then ended

statement of changes in equity for the year then ended

cash flow statement for the year then ended

notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies
certification of the financial statements.

In my opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all matenal respects, the financial
position of the council as at 30 June 2018 and their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of Part 6 of the
Local Government Act 1989 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards.

| have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the
Australian Auditing Standards, | further describe my responsibilities under that Act and
those standards in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financiof Report section
of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and | are
independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Victoria. My
staff and | have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion,

The Councillors of the coundil are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Locaf
Government Act 1989, and for such internal control as the Councillors determine Is
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the council’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so.

Lovel 31 7 35 Colling Streat, Malboumne Vic 3000
T 03 8601 7000 enquines@loudi v gov.ou www.audit vic gov.ou
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Auditor’s As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial

responsibilities report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance

for the audit about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether

of the financial due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable

report assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism threughout the audit. | also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control

. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Councillors

- conclude on the appropriateness of the Councillors” use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
council 1o cease to continue as a going concern,

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Counciltors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that | ideatify during my audit.
MELBOURNE Tim Loughnan
26 September 2018 as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victorio
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2l - Permit No: PinApp15/079.01

\.—/

RURAL CIFY OF Planning Scheme: Wangaratta Planning Scheme
WANGARATTA Responsible Authority: RURAL CITY OF WANGARATTA
PLANNING
PERMIT

ADDRESS OF THE LAND: Lot 1 TP 16029
CA 9 Sec 23 Par Wangaratta Vol 10437 Fol 086
CA 6 Sec 23 Par Wangaratta Vol 2825 Fol 826
Lot 1 TP 12347 Vol 10440 Fol 190
Lot 1 TP 14806 Vol 10487 Fol 631

DRAFT Lot 2 TP 12371 Vol 10425 Fol 961
Lot 1 TP 12365 Vol 10425 Fol 963
59-69 Ryley Street WANGARATTA VIC 3677
31 Ford Street WANGARATTA VIC 3677

THE PERMIT ALLOWS: Alterations and Additions to an Existing Aged Care
Facility in the Commercial 1 Zone and Heritage

DRAFT Overlay, Alteration of Access to a Road Zone Category
1, and Creation of an Easement of Way

THIS PERMIT HAS BEEN AMENDED AS FOLLOWS:

Rural City of Wangaratta Conditions:

1. Prior to the commencement of the development, amended plans to the satisfaction of the
Responsible Authority must be submitted to and approved by the Responsible Authority. When
approved, the plans will be endorsed and will then form part of the permit. The plans must be
drawn to scale with dimensions and three copies must be provided. The plans must be generally
in accordance with the plans submitted with the application but modified as follows;

a) Removal of easement of way over the Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre carpark.

b) Provision of a loading bay within the Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre carpark adjacent
to the Wangaratta Art Gallery using dimensions as stipulated by Council.

c) Removal of loading bay within the Ryley Street road reserve and replacement of this space
with seven permanent parking spaces.

2. The development as shown on the endorsed plans must not be altered without the prior written
consent of the Responsible Authority.

Original Permit
. Delegate of the
Issued: 11/09/2015 Responsible

Amendment Issued:  XX/XX/2018 Authority:

Warwick Smith
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PLANNING PERMIT
Wangaratta Planning Scheme Application No: PinApp15/079.01

3. The development must be managed so that the amenity of the area is not detrimentally affected,
through the:

a) Transpoert of materials, goods or commaodities to or from the land;
b) Appearance of any building, works or materials;

c) Emission of noise, artificial light, vibration, smell, fumes, smoke, vapour, steam, soot, ash,
dust, waste water, waste products, grit or oil;

d) Presence of vermin;
e) Storage of solid waste; and
f) Infiltration of groundwater.

4. External cladding of the building must be maintained and kept in good condition at all times to
the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

5. Maintenance of all buildings, surrounds, storage and parking areas within the site must be
carried out in such a manner to render the site in a neat, tidy and clean condition at all times to
the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

6. Any external lighting installed on the site shall be to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.
All such lighting shall be fitted with suitable shields and baffles so that no direct light is omitted
which causes a nuisance to adjoining properties, or a danger to road users.

7. No new sign(s), hoardings, flashing lights, flags, bunting or any other advertising devices
may be erected or displayed on the subject land (unless permitted ‘as of right’ pursuant to
the Wangaratta Planning Scheme), without the prior written approval of the Responsible
Authority.

Section 173 Agreement

8. Prior to the commencement of the use of development authorised by this permit, the Owner of
the land must enter into an agreement with the Responsible Authority, pursuant to Section 173
of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.
This agreement must be registered by the Responsible Authority pursuant to Section 181 of
the Planning and Environment Act 1987.

The Agreement must provide for:

(a) The development on the land not being used, unless the Owner has obtained and
maintains a licence from Wangaratta Rural City Council (Council) to use the existing

Delegate of the
Original Permit Responsible
Issued: 11/09/2015  Authority:
Amended
Issued: XX/10/2018 WaWick St
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PLANNING PERMIT
Wangaratta Planning Scheme Application No: PinApp15/079.01

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

(@

(h)

U

(1)

(k)

U

access way from Ovens Street forming part of the Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre,
unless with the consent of the Council;

The Owner, its staff, contractors, agents and invitees or users must not use the
carparks within the Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre unless with the consent of the
Council;

The Owner must not use the Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre for access to the land
for any deliveries involving a vehicle larger than that of an 8.8m rigid truck, unless with
the prior written consent of the Council;

The Owner submitting to the Council (as owner of the land) for approval at its sole
discretion, plans showing how the connection to the Wangaratta Performing Arts
Centre will be made and what works will be undertaken by the owner;

The Owner undertaking all approved works shown in the plans that are approved by
Council, to facilitate the access connection to the land from the Wangaratta Performing
Arts Centre at the Owners cost;

The Owner providing an indemnity to Council for any and all losses arising directly or
indirectly out of the Owner, its staff, contractors, agents and invitees or users using the
access way from Ovens Street over part of the Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre;

The Owner noting Council as an interested party on its public liability insurance for an
amount to the satisfaction of Council, and ensuring that the insurance cover is
extended to cover any use of the access way by the owner, its staff, contractors,
agents and invitees or users;

The Owner agreeing to contribute its proportionate share (to be calculated at Council's
sole discretion) towards the costs of maintaining the access way, including regular
maintenance, cleaning as well as contributing towards the costs of any improvements
that are reasonably necessary as a result of the increase in vehicle movements arising
from the development or any other costs associated with the access way over the
Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre as requested by Council;

The Owner reimbursing Council for all of its costs associated with obtaining and
installing appropriate directional, access and parking arrangement signage as well as
costs associated with making any other changes and / or reconfiguration of the car
parking arrangements at the Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre as determined
necessary by the Council,

The Owner agrees that if the Council undertakes any expansion or redevelopment of
the land currently known as Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre and the Council
provides at least three months’ notice to the Owner, the Owner must obtain alternative
and permanent access over its own land or cease using the development until any
such alternative access arrangements have been made and formalised; and

The Owner being liable to pay the costs of reinstating the Wangaratta Performing Arts
Centre car park when and if alternative access is provided to the development or if the
licence agreement ends.

Delivery vehicles associated with the Aged Care Facility are not permitted to load or
unload from the Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre.

Delegate of the

Original Permit Responsible

Issued:

Amended
Issued:

11/09/2015  Authority:

XX/10/2018 Warwick Smith
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PLANNING PERMIT
Wangaratta Planning Scheme Application No: PinApp15/079.01

The agreement is to remain for the life of the development at the land unless permanent
alternative access arrangements are made and finalised over land owned by the Owner in
which case the owner shall make good all connections to Council land to Council's sole
satisfaction.

The agreement must be prepared by Council's lawyers and must be executed prior to the
commencement of any use of the development and all costs relating to the preparation and
registration of the agreement are to be borne by the Applicant.

Drainage

9.

10.

1.

12.

Prior to the commencement of the use of the approved development, all storm-water runoff
originating from the development in a 10% AEP event must be collected and conveyed by
underground pipes to a legal point of discharge identified by the Responsible Authority.

Prior to the commencement of the use of the approved development , all storm-water runoff
originating from the development in a 1% AEP event must be collected and conveyed by secure
overland andfor underground flood pathways to a legal point of discharge identified by the
Responsible Authority.

Prior to construction commencing on the site:

a) a detailed drainage plan with computations, incorporating provision for sufficient on-site
detention to limit the peak outflow from the property during a 10% AEP rainfall event to 38
litres/second, must be prepared in accordance with Section 19 of the IDM, and be
submitted to, and approved by, the Responsible Authority.

b) a stormwater treatment plan, incorporating measures to enhance the quality of water
discharged from the developed site, and to protect downstream infrastructure and the
receiving waters, must be prepared in accordance with Clause 20 of the IDM, and be
submitted to, and be approved by, the Responsible Authority.

Prior to the commencement of the use of the approved development, all drainage infrastructure
required by the proposed development must be constructed in accordance with plans and
specifications approved by the Responsible Authority,

Traffic Management

13.

14.

Prior to the commencement of the use of the approved development, all internal customer
parking, manoeuvring areas and loading and unloading areas created by the approved
development, and as shown on the endorsed plan(s), are to be constructed, sealed and drained
in accordance with plans and specifications approved by the Responsible Authority.

Parking spaces 10 to 18, inclusive, as provided on the endorsed plans, are to be made
available for public use and linemarked and signposted so as to be readily apparent that they
are available for public use, to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

Delegate of the

Original Permit Responsible

Issued: 11/09/2015  Authority:

Amended
Issued: XX/10/2018

Warwick Smith
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15. Prior to the commencement of the use of the approved development, all vehicle crossings as
shown on the endorsed plan must be constructed and sealed to the standards of Council's
Infrastructure Design Manual [IDM] Section 12.9.1 “Urban Vehicle Crossings”, to the satisfaction
of the Responsible Authority. In particular, works must be in accordance with Council's IDM
Standard Drawing SD-250.

16. Prior to the commencement of the use, the applicant must demonstrate to the satisfaction of the
Responsible Authority that all internal footpaths and pedestrian crossings that link directly with
Council footpaths have been designed and constructed in accordance with the provisions of
IDM Clause 13.3.

17. All parking areas and access routes must be provided with appropriate lighting in accordance
with the relevant Australian Standards, including the current issue of AS/ANZ 1158 - Lighting for
Roads and Public Spaces.

18. Deliveries vehicles associated with the Aged Care Facility are not permitted to load or unload
from the Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre.

19. Vehicle access and egress from the property, including access and egress into the Wangaratta
Performing Arts Centre carpark, must take place in a forward direction at all imes.

20. Vehicles with a turning circle larger than that of an 8.8 metre rigid truck are not permitted to
access the site or the Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre carpark.

21. Those areas set aside for car parking and access shall continue to be available and maintained
for that purpose and shall not be used for another purpose, without the prior approval of the
Responsible Authority.

Construction

22. Prior to the commencement of construction, a Site Management Plan must be submitted to
and approved by the Responsible Authority and effective measures consistent with the plan
must be taken to:

a) implement effective traffic management and environmental controls;

b) establish and maintain safe construction vehicle access to the site;

c) establish secure wash-down and lay-down areas,

d) maintain vehicle and machinery hygiene;

e) avoid the spread of soil-borne pathogens and weeds;

f) minimise erosion, sedimentation and contamination;

g) reduce the impact of noise, dust and other emissions during construction;

h) prevent mud, dirt, sand, soil, clay or stones from entering the drainage system; and
i) avoid having such materials deposited on public land by construction vehicles.

Delegate of the
Original Permit Responsible
Issued: 11/09/2015  Authority:
Amended
Issued: XX/10/2018 WaWick St
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23. No construction materials or earth may be placed or stored outside the site area or on adjoining
road reserves or other public land, including the Wangaratta Performing Arts Centre. This
restriction does not apply to any road or footpath construction works on any adjoining roads
which are required as part of this permit.

24. During construction, access to the site is only permitted via Ryley Street.

25. Care must be taken to preserve the condition of existing infrastructure adjacent to the site, If
any damage to existing infrastructure occurs as a result of this development, the affected
infrastructure must be replaced by the applicant, at the applicant's cost, to the specification and
satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

26. At the conclusion of construction, all areas extemal to the site that are disturbed in the course
of the works must be restored to their original condition, to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority,

VicRoads

27. Before development commences, amended plans must be submitted to and approved by the
Roads Corporation. When approved by the Roads Corporation, the plans may be endorsed by
the Responsible Authority and will form part of the permit. The plans must be drawn to scale
and generally in accordance with the revised Site Plan dated 15 May 2018.

28. Prior to the occupation of the works, hereby approved, crossover and driveways are to be
designed and constructed to the satisfaction of the Roads Corporation and the Responsible
Authority and at no cost to the Roads Corporation. The access be as follows:

* Western access point on Ryley Street will be for traffic entry only

29. All disused or redundant vehicle crossings must be removed and the area, including the nature
strip, are to be reinstated to kerb and channel to the satisfaction of and at no cost to the Roads
Corporation prior to the works hereby approved.

Permit Expiry

30. This permit will expire if one of the following circumstances applies:

a) the development is not started within two years of the date of this permit.
b) the development is not completed within four years of the date of this permit.

The Responsible Authority may extend the date specified under part a) if a request is made in
writing before the permit expires, or within six months afterwards. The Responsible Authority
may extend the date specified under b} if a request is made in writing before the permit expires,
or within twelve months afterwards.

Delegate of the
Original Permit Responsible
Issued: 11/09/2015  Authority:
Amended
Issued: XX/10/2018 WaWick St
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Notes:

* Once the original face of St Patricks Church is exposed Council's Heritage Advisor must be
contacted to provide instruction as to the best method for restoration and/or conservation of the
fabric as directed.

¢ Before undertaking any works that cross onto public land or roads, the applicant must obtain a
permit from the relevant authority giving Consent to Work within a Road Reserve.

This permit was amended on XX October 2018, under Section 72 of the Planning and Environment
Act 1987, to:

Amend condition 1 to show change of access on plans

Insert a new condition 8 to provide for an access agreement

Insert a new condition 14 to note availability of parking spaces

Insert a new condition 22 to note expectations of site management plan
Insert a new condition 23 to take account of new access arrangements
Insert a new condition 24 to show new access arrangements

Insert a new condition 26 to include construction arrangements

Amend VicRoads conditions to reflect changed access arrangements

+ To take account of the above insertions the original conditions have been renumbered.

Delegate of the
Original Permit Responsible
Issued: 11/09/2015  Authority:
Amended
lssued: XX/10/2018 WaWick St

Item 8.1 Attachment 2 Page 141 of 141



	Contents
	1.	Acknowledgement of Traditional Owners
	2.	Opening Prayer
	3.	Present
	4.	Absent
	5.	Acceptance of Apologies & Granting of Leave of Absence
	Order of Business
	6.	Conflict of Interest Disclosure
	Presentation Of Reports
	Officers’ Reports
	7.	Corporate Services
	7.1. Annual Report 2017/18
	Recommendation
	Attachments
	7.1 - Attachment 1 - Annual Report 2017/18


	8.	Development Services
	8.1. Application to Amend Planning Permit for St Catherines
	Recommendation
	Attachments
	8.1 - Attachment 1 - Amended Plans
	8.1 - Attachment 2 - Draft Amended Permit


	9.	Closure of Meeting
	Attachments

